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Financial Highlights
MBRE

For the year ended 31 December/ BZE12A318LLEE Change (%)
As at 31 December R12A31H 2015 2014 E5)(%)
Financial highlight (RMB million) BERE(AREBTET)
Revenue E 1,178.0 1,216.5 (3.2%)
Gross profit EH 604.6 640.3 (5.6%)
Profit before taxation % 752 A1 N 338.9 489.0 (30.7%)
Profit for the year attributable to equity ViN/NSI b
shareholders of the Company FEFMHE 267.3 403.2 (33.7%)
Total comprehensive income for the year A R AR R AL
attributable to equity shareholders FREFeKmER
of the Company 264.8 405.2 (34.6%)
Earnings before interest, tax, BRAE - BIE - ER
depreciation and amortisation BHRT AN 350.3 499.0 (29.8%)
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders  #EzS A% B fE (R AEzS AE %R 1,710.8 1,641.1 4.2%
Total assets EEE 2,182.9 1,871.5 16.6%
Financial ratios U dn ez
Net debt to shareholders’ fund (%) SFES RN E & E(%) Net cash Net cash N/A
FHRE FIRE TEA
Interest coverage (times) FBERE(EZ) 339.2 N/A N/A
i A i A
Financial information per share (RMB)  SRHHER (AR T)
Earnings & F| 0.16 0.24 (33.3%)
Dividends hds 0.065 0.100 (35.0%)
Equity attributable to equity holders ERfFA AEGER 1.03 0.99 4.2%
REVENUE & 3% TOTAL ASSETS & & NET PROFIT #5i7| EQUITY
(RMB million) (AR E&IT)  (RMB million) (ARBESTT) (RMB million) (AREEET) (RMB million) (AREEST)
2,182.9
1,400 2,200 500 18000 16411 7108
b 00 1,216.5 1,178.0 2,000 1,871.5 4032 1,600
1,600 400 1,400
/000 1600 1,200
1,400 ,
800 o 300 267.3 1.000
2 1,000 200 800
800 600
400 600 400
400 100
200 200 200
0 0 0 0
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
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Key Financial Ratios
FEHRFLL R

Financial ratio Bt = 2015 2014
Profitability ratios BAIgE D=
Gross profit margin FEH= 51.3% 52.6%
Net profit margin before interest and tax BB R EBIBRDF R B 28.9% 40.2%
Net profit margin AR 22.7% 33.1%
Return on equity -y EE R 15.8% 26.7%
Return on total assets BEERWE 13.1% 23.5%
Liquidity ratios REESEE
Current ratio mENLL ZE 4.51 times & 7.91 times &
Quick ratio L 3.95 times & 7.15 times &
Stock turnover days FEEAEEH 136.3 days H 101.5 days H
Debtors’ turnover days JE U BR SR B8 H 24 80.2 days H 77.6 days H
Creditors’ turnover days FEFTER B8 H & 110.8 days H 77.2 days A
Capacity adequacy ratios BEXFRLER
Gearing ratio BELE 5.9% N/A E
Debt to net worth ratio EBFELL RS 14.5% 2.9%
Interest coverage (times) BERR(EZ) 339.2 N/A TiERA
Others Hith
Net debt to shareholders’ funds SFERERRE S X Net cash Net cash
FEE FREe

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN EF|2=
%
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

ESRHEE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hosa International Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Company’s annual results report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

FIRR

RANERKEDPBEEBERAR(ARA D - BREMBAR  SAEAIAKENEES((EFg DIREARRHEE2015F12H

BNALFEEERS

In 2015, the economic environment was relatively complicated as it was
gradually improving in the first half, then the economic growth decelerated
in the third quarter and was under pressure in the fourth quarter of the year,
posing major challenges to the Group.

Facing economic slowdown of the PRC, the growth of the consumer market
continued to be sluggish. In view of the decline in the operating conditions
of the malls and department stores, together with the impact on traditional
sales channels imposed by e-commerce, it is not unusual that many of them
were closed down and restructured. The Group’s main sales channels of
underwear specialty stores suffered to a relatively large extent, in particular
lots of cotton knitwear areas in the malls exited and underwear specialty
stores were closed down, resulting in a relatively large impact on the annual
results and profit of the year. The overall operating condition yet remained
stable and healthy, and the risks were still controllable.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue for the year of the
Group was RMB1,178.0 million, representing a decrease of 3.2% as
compared with last year. The net profit was RMB267.3 million, representing
a decrease of 33.7% as compared with last year. The basic earnings per
share was RMB16 cents, representing a decreased of 33.3% as compared
with last year.

2015%F » ERBLRIEM - { LEFESP
M BRHE=FERERE  DIREEN
FEHNTERN  HAEEZR T mkEN—
quo

EH P BEEILR R - HETISIERSER
Ko EERBERARKERRFETIE - L
BHRRBERIERHNFETE  BSKEER
RIRE R EREVERIL AL - REBEANKE
BEEREXRIBAFE  HHZREEHBHR
BOBEMAREEENEE - BUE2FEE
MAEBERBZIWATE - BEREELERN
RNBE TS RE 2 BIRRE - BB KA ATE -

HZE2015F12A3181L - AEBRNEELE
BEAARE117808E L ' LLEFRETE
32%  FHREAEARK2673HET ' tbE
FEREITE3Z.7% - FREABFARE16
D L EFRIETFES3.3% °
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Chairman’s Statement

ESREEE

Based on the Group’s performance for the year of 2015, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.8 cents) per share to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing 11% of the profit attributable to equity holders; and with
the interim dividend of HK6.0 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB4.7
cents), the total dividend payout ratio for the year was approximately 40%.
The Board recommended an additional payment of a special dividend of
HK2.0 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB1.7 cents) per share to the
shareholders of the Group.

The Group has been focusing on sports health market for a long term with
leading edges in innovation and brand to create differentiation. Against
the backdrop of rising operating costs, the Group continued to provide
effective sponsorships and promotions in professional contests as principal
marketing strategy. In 2015, the Company devoted more efforts in the
sponsorships of professional swimming and gym competitions, such as the
National Swimming Championships, the National Marathon Swimming
Championships and the National Beach Volleyball Grand Slam. In addition,
as a title sponsor of the Fédération Internationale De Natation (“FINA")
Marathon Swimming World Cup and Diving Series and being the global
partner of FINA, the Group sponsored the Marathon Swimming World Cup
and the diving tournament of FINA World Cup.

As a sports and health industry group with a brand mission of delivering
and propagandising a natural, healthy and joyful sports lifestyle, the Group
is committed to performing one of the important missions of giving back to
society to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities while creating corporate
operating results and offering favourable shareholders’ returns. In 2015,
the Group continued to promote and develop fitness for all population
throughout the country through wide and deep cooperation with many
organisations in the industry, organised and sponsored more than a hundred
fitness promotion campaigns in different cities across China, for instance,
the National Fitness Carnival, the Fitness Exchange Conference, the Yoga
Conference and the Asia Fitness Festival, aimed at promoting the culture
of fitness, popularising fitness activities and advocating scientific fitness
nationwide, particularly, to fulfill its social responsibilities by raising national
citizens' health awareness and improving their physical condition.

The products and brand name of the Group have gained wide recognition
in the markets and saw rising brand influence with a brand value increased
from RMB3,506 million in 2014 to RMB4,032 million in 2015 and the Group
was again awarded as one of the “China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands” by
the World Brand Lab.
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Chairman’s Statement

In line with the changes in market environment and business landscape,
the Group has been making active and innovative response to seize the
opportunities offered by the booming sports and health industry and the
specialised niche markets. In 2015, on back of the national “Internet +”
initiative which drove the transformation and development of the Chinese
enterprises, the development of internet and popularization of e-commerce
played a more influential role in the markets and the mode of competition,
providing better opportunities but also posing more challenges to the
enterprises. The revolution on the entire distribution and marketing model
driven by the development of internet and e-commerce brought along
expectations towards traditional industry for transformation and upgrading.
To follow the changing market trend and cater for the need of future
development, during 2015, the Group sought to develop, transform and
upgrade itself in four key aspects, namely brand segmentation, product
structure optimization, reform of the distribution channels and strategy
layout of sports and health ecosphere by adopting the following five key
measures:

1. Propel the independent distribution channel construction of Water
Cube branded products to further improve its mass market share of
water sports products;

2. continue to optimise the existing mall-centred distribution model and
establish all-around distribution channels for the convenience and
consumption experience of consumers by focusing on the construction
of outlets model such as professional network, e-commerce, direct
selling and marketing by coaches;

3. focus on the enhancement of store quality and consumers’ experience
in the construction of existing retail outlets with Hosa sports health
experience stores as the pilot model;

4. develop some special-supplied products for e-commerce based on the
consuming characteristics of e-commerce channels for e-commerce
development;

5. develop intelligent apparel and sports and health APP in line with
the implementation of the Company’s strategy of sports and health
ecosphere.

The above measures were substantially completed as scheduled and
basically achieved the expected effect in 2015. Since the construction of
sports and health ecosphere is a new model and an exploration stage,
adjustments will be made in the course of implementation according to
the market conditions. Basically, it is in a controllable status as a whole.
In 2016, the Group will continue to promote the foregoing matters and
propel the transformation and upgrading in order to lay a foundation
for the better development of the Group in the future. Meanwhile, the
construction of sports and health ecosphere will remain as the highlight of
the transformation and breakthrough of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

ESREEE

Consumers’ pursuits for sports and health products and services have been
building up swiftly along with the surge in consumption level. After the
promulgation of “Certain Opinions on Promoting the Development of Health
Service Industry” in 2013, the State Council promulgated “Certain Opinions
on Accelerating the Development of Sports Industry and Promoting Sports
Consumption” in 2014, which brought along a significant development
opportunity for both health service and sports service sectors. The market
is estimated to grow by several trillion RMB dollars in the next decade. In
respect of sports and health products and sports and health services, the
Group has been in the leading position leveraging on its resources and those
from controlling shareholders. In light of the above-mentioned reasons, the
Group timely formulated its development strategies in the sports and health
industry in the second half of 2014. It is expected to establish itself as a
sports and health industry group leading the sports and health lifestyle trend
in the future.

The Group'’s development strategies for the sports and health industry will
focus on consumers’ sports and health lifestyle. With the establishment
of a sports and health ecosphere by developing and integrating industry
resources based on sports and health products and big data, it links
consumers, scenarios and products with the service provider in a mobile
sports and health community to cater for the consumers’ sports and health
lifestyle and provide them with comprehensive 3A (“Anytime, Anywhere,
Anyway") services.

In 2016, the Group will continue to fully commence the implementation
of its sports and health industry strategies with the focus on the following
tasks:

1. Based on the successful operation of pilot Hosa Sports Health
Experience Store, propel strongly the establishment of this type of
store to the increase revenue of each store and the brand image;

2. based on consumers’ needs, develop new sports and health products
and consolidate resources of sports and health products and services

to explore new business growth point;

3\ successively develop and launch intelligent sports and health products,
such as intelligent apparel;

4. by consolidating industry resources, gradually build up the
comprehensive sports and health ecosphere.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group believes that the promotion and implementation of the above
measures will tremendously consolidate the competitive edges of the
Group in sports and health sector in the future. Although there might be
impact on the results indicators of the Group in a short term due to the
transformation and upgrading, it is considered to be inevitable stage in a
bid to better enhance the long-term competitiveness and create more space
for development of the Group. We believe that the implementation of the
Group's sports and health industry strategies will form the foundation for
future development and create a huge room for future development and
growth of the Group as well as more value and returns to the consumers
and shareholders.

| would like to convey my gratitude to everyone who supports and trusts the
Group. The contributions and support will from the senior management,
staff, partners, consumers and shareholders of the Group are the
cornerstone and incentive of the continuous development of the Group.

Shi Hongliu
Charrman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEBNWR DM

12

MARKET ENVIRONMENT

2015 was the year of full challenges. The growth of the Chinese
economy decelerated and consumer market continued to be sluggish.
Meanwhile, under the backdrop of the national “Internet +”
initiative which drove the transformation and development of the
Chinese enterprises, the development of internet and popularization
of e-commerce played a more influential role in the market and
competitive landscape, providing more opportunities but also
posing greater challenges to enterprises. There is a pressing need for
traditional enterprises to transform and upgrade.

Traditional sales channels were under persistent pressure by
e-commerce, therefore, the operating performance of shopping
malls remained weak. The development of e-commerce lowered the
entry barrier to the market and hence the market of the Group is
less concentrated. There has been larger impact on mall-based sales
channels of the Group, especially its regular underwear business,
due to the aforementioned situation. However, the Group maintains
a leading position in the sports and health product areas where it
operates.

2015 was also the year of ample opportunities to the Group which
strategically targets to be a leading sports and health conglomerate
in the PRC. The PRC government has gradually promoted and
implemented the policies of both the sports service industry and
health industry under the adverse economic situation. The sound
development trend of the sports service industry and health industry
creates favourable external conditions for promoting the strategic
development of the sports and health industry and the successful
transformation and upgrade of the Group, in which it possesses
advantages of abundant resources in the industry.

mIHRE
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2.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

In 2015, in the face of worsening of market environment to traditional
industry, the Group actively promoted innovations in respect of
branding, sales channels and retail outlets and the transformation
and upgrade of the enterprise. Although there was a slide in the
overall performance, the operating condition was still healthy in
general and the risks remained controllable, which are in line with the
expectation on the fluctuating performance of the Group during the
stage of transformation and upgrade. The launch of strategies in the
sports and health industry provide the Group with a greater room for
development.

In 2015, the Group's revenue for the year amounted to RMB1,178.0
million (2014: RMB1,216.5 million), representing a decrease of 3.2%
as compared with last year. The profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the Group amounted to RMB267.3 million (2014:
RMB403.2 million), representing a decrease of 33.7% as compared
with last year.

(a)

(b)

Products

Currently, the Group’s sports and health products and
equipment are indoor sportswear, including the three product
lines, namely yoga and fitness wear, swimwear and sports
underwear. Focusing on the sports and fitness demand of
the target users, the Group continues to optimise its product
structure. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the operating
income of the Group’s three product lines of yoga and fitness
wear, swimwear and sports underwear amounted to RMB437.1
million (2014: RMB392.3 million), RMB547.8 million (2014:
RMB515.5 million) and RMB193.1 million (2014: RMB308.8
million) respectively, representing an increase of 11.4%, 6.3%
and a decline of 37.5% respectively as compared with last year.

Branding

In order to meet the multi-faceted demand from both the
fitness and swimming communities, the Group currently
possesses two brands of apparel products, namely Hosa and
Water Cube. The brand value of Hosa is continuously on the
rise. In June 2015, the Group was again recognised as one
of the China’s 500 Most Valuable Brands by the World Brand
Lab, with its brand value increased from RMB3.506 billion in
2014 to RMB4.032 billion. The Group continued to ramp up
the promotion and develop the independent sale channels for
Water Cube brand apparel in 2015, and by leveraging its brand
influence, high professional standard and price-performance
ratio, the Group continued to expand sales in the mass
swimwear market. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Hosa brand apparel’s revenue amounted to RMB1,026.0 million
(2014: RMB1,075.4 million), representing a decrease of 4.6%
as compared with the same period in 2014, while the Water
Cube brand apparel’s revenue amounted to RMB152.0 million
(2014: RMB141.1 million), representing an increase of 7.7% as
compared with the same period in 2014.
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(c)

Channels and Sales Outlets

In 2015, the sales channels of underwear specialty stores of
the Group suffered to a relatively large extent, in particular
many cotton knitwear areas in the malls exited and underwear
specialty stores were closed down. However, the Group
continued to optimise the existing mall-centred distribution
model and establish all-around distribution channels for the
convenience and consumption experiences of consumers
by focusing on the construction of diversified outlets model
such as professional network, e-commerce, direct selling and
marketing by coaches. At the same time, for the development
of physical sales outlets, by launching trial sports and health
experience store, the Group emphasised the improvement of
the consumption experience so as to promote sales outlets.
These enabled the Group to maintain a healthy level in overall
operation and improve the quality of sales network under the
adverse market environment.

In order to adapt to the development of internet and
e-commerce and respond to the deteriorating market
environment of the existing products, the Group proactively
promoted channels’ innovation. Meanwhile, the Group also
took advantage of the features of the Group's products
including specialization, flexibility of composition and
compatibility to encourage the offering of sales packages with
complementary products and brands by means of wholesale
and distribution. The above measures enabled the Group to
maintain a healthy level in overall operation and improve the
quality of sales network under the adverse market environment.
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Marketing and Consumer Relations

Focusing on enhancing the brand personality as being natural,
healthy and joyful, the Group continued to carry out accurate
and effective brand promotion and marketing campaigns
which focused on its target customers, and dedicated itself to
promoting a sports and health lifestyle. In order to promote
fitness culture, the Group continued to vigorously promote
and develop sports and fitness throughout the country in
2015 through wide and deep cooperation with many other
organisations in the fitness industry. It organised and sponsored
more than a hundred of fitness promotion campaigns in
different cities across the country, for instance, the National
Fitness Carnival, the Fitness Exchange Conference, the Yoga
Conference and the Asia Fitness Festival, aimed at spreading the
culture of fitness, popularising fitness activities and advocating
scientific fitness nationwide, particularly, to fulfill its social
responsibilities by raising national citizens’ health awareness
and improving their physical conditions.

In 2015, the Company kept devoting more effort on the
sponsorship of professional swimming and gym competitions,
such as the National Swimming Championships, the National
Marathon Swimming Championships and the National Beach
Volleyball Grand Slam. In addition, as a title sponsor of the FINA
Marathon Swimming World Cup and Diving Series and being
the global partner of FINA, the Group sponsored, including but
not limited to, the Marathon Swimming World Cup and the
diving tournament of FINA World Cup.

The above promotional events received overwhelming response
in the market and the brand influence and professional status
of Hosa were also effectively promoted.

(d)
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(e)

Product Research and Development

Equipped with nearly 20 years of experience in indoor
sportswear research and development, rich professional
knowledge and technological build-up, the Group has
established a seasoned research and development team for
indoor sports apparel that is familiar with the demand of indoor
sportswear in China’s consumer market. The Group has created
a globalised and professional research and development system
formed by domestic and foreign professional cooperating
institutions including Hosa International Beijing Design Centre,
Hosa International Fujian Technology Centre, French Design
Studio, function and prototype expert team from Japan as well
as The Asian Fitness Academy, which enabled the Group to
continuously enhance its competitive strengths in terms of the
professional design, fashion design, functional development
and technology of indoor sportswear and thus maintained the
market competitive edge of the Group’s products. In 2014,
Hosa swimwear obtained the certification for competition
swimwear of FINA, in which Hosa is the only enterprise obtained
such certification in the PRC up to now.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group possessed 50 patents.
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Financial review
Revenue
By operating segments

Revenue of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 was RMB1,178.0 million (2014: RMB1,216.5 million),
representing a decrease of 3.2% as compared to the revenue
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014. The following
table sets forth the sources of revenue by operating segments in
the Group's operations:

()

LD 5 &

AEBEHZ2015F12A31HIEE
BRFEEMEETAAREK1,178.0
BEL(20145F : AR¥1,2165
BEL)  BEZE2014F12A8
BTHILEMBREENESEB T
32% o FRE|IAEBIREBRK
B EEI D R ATOR

Year ended 31 December

BZNAMMBLEE
2015 2014
RMB’'000 % RMB 000 %
AERHTIT Bolt ARETFT Bt
Domestic sales NEHE
Swimwear — Hosa IEE)— & 335,472 28.5 342,262 28.2
Swimwear IKIEED
— Water Cube — K 151,994 12.9 141,101 11.6
Fitness wear — Hosa & Fwin— 540 436,471 37.0 390,990 32.1
Sports underwear EEIAK
— Hosa — &9 193,146 16.4 308,763 25.4
Subtotal /Net 1,117,083 94.8 1,183,116 97.3
Overseas sales EINHE
Swimwear — Hosa IGEE)— & 60,313 5.1 32,125 2.6
Fitness wear — Hosa 2 Z il — & 605 0.1 1,305 0.1
Subtotal N 60,918 5.2 33,430 2.7
Total Azt 1,178,001 100.0 1,216,546 100.0

Domestic sales decreased from RMB1,183.1 million for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014 to RMB1,117.1 million
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015, representing
a decrease of 5.6%. Overseas sales increased from RMB33.4
million for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB60.9 million for the financial year ended 31 December
2015, representing an increase of 82.2%. Given that the
market potential remains relatively large in China, the Group
will continue to focus on its sales efforts in the PRC market in
the coming years.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group primarily consisted of production
costs and procurement costs of finished products from external
sources. Production costs include raw material costs, labour
costs as well as manufacturing overhead incurred in the
production of swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of the cost of sales
for the Group’s products:

HEAK

AEENHERATEBELE
PR B A 9N BB SR BB AR dm O AR
EERABREEKED 5
0 K2 B B A TEE A WY R MR
A BIRARSGERR - T&
AN EEE R B AR -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014

RMB’000 %  RMB0OOO %

ANR¥EFIT BAlt AREFIT Bt

Raw materials MR 436,034 76.0 432,680 75.1

Labour AT 54,846 9.6 62,874 10.9

Manufacturing overhead BlEEH 18,972 3.3 20,749 3.6
Procurement costs of

finished products AR SR ER B Ak AN 63,561 11.1 59,970 10.4

573,413 100.0 576,273 100.0

Raw material costs primarily refer to the costs of procuring
raw materials used in the production of our products, such as
fabrics, threads and ancillary clothing materials. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the average purchase price for the
Group's key raw materials was RMB57.4 (2014: RMB57.7) per
kilogram, which was slightly lower than that for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Certain production and processing procedures of the Group's
products, primarily fabric manufacturing, fabric printing and
dyeing as well as fabric cutting, sewing and stitching, are
outsourced to external contract manufacturers. The Group
provides fabric materials to contract manufacturers for
processing and pay outsourced processing and service fees.
Such outsourced processing and service fees are categorised
under the Group's raw material costs. Labour costs consisted
of salaries, benefits and other forms of compensation paid to
the Group’s production staff. Manufacturing overhead mainly
includes depreciation of production facilities, costs associated
with operating our facilities including electricity, water,
maintenance costs, etc.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the cost of sales
by operating segments:

TEREIIR
PRANBRAR -

REDHEDHHEE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2015 2014
RMB’000 % RME 000 %
AR¥FT BAE AREFIT B2
Swimwear — Hosa KIEE) - Y& 179,311 31.3 156,531 27.2
Swimwear — Water Cube IKEE) - 7}<_L}'5 88,493 15.4 85,856 14.9
Fitness wear — Hosa 2 S — &0 187,372 32.7 154,509 26.8
Sports underwear — Hosa EENK - D 118,237 20.6 179,377 311
573,413 100.0 576,273 100.0
Gross profit EF
Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 rE @i§201 5¢\]2 H31H {JE
was RMB604.6 million (2014: RMB640.3 million), representing %FQE’\J%%'J%/\E%GMBE%
a decrease of 5.6% as compared to that of the year ended 31 T ( 201\4% CAR®6403H B
December 2014. Gross profit margin of the Group for the year JT) - FE&EZOM%QH 3181k
ended 31 December 2015 was 51.3% (2014: 52.6%). FERD56% ° BE2015F 12
AMBIEFEAREENEMNER
51.3%(20144F : 52.6%) °

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group'’s gross
profit from operations and gross profit margin by geographical
regions and operating segments:

T%ﬁﬁ‘lﬁziﬂln—j&%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
ng%li«‘iéﬁﬁ SEMREMNE
REAT :

Year ended 31 December

BHZNRAMMBLEE
2015 2014
Gross Gross
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Profit Margin Profit Margin
EF EFZE EAH FEH=
RMB’000 % FME 000 %
AREFIT BRlt ARETFT B
Domestic sales NS
Swimwear — Hosa KIBE) - & 188,290 56.1 205,594 60.1
Swimwear — Water Cube IKEE) - KL 63,501 41.8 55,245 39.2
Fitness wear — Hosa & S ' - &0 249,435 57.2 237,287 60.7
Sports underwear — Hosa BEANK - ED 74,909 38.8 129,386 41.9
Subtotal /Net 576,135 51.6 627,512 53.0
Overseas sales TEINEE
Swimwear — Hosa KBS — D 28,184 46.7 12,262 38.2
Fitness wear — Hosa & B - & 269 44.4 499 38.2
Subtotal Nat 28,453 46.7 12,761 38.2
Total #est 604,588 513 640,273 52.6
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Other revenue

Other revenue of the Group primarily consisted of government
grants and interest income from interest-bearing bank deposits.
The government grants were provided by provincial or
prefectural government authorities in the form of unconditional
subsidies as recognition for the Group’s contribution to the
local economy through the Group’s business operation and
achievements as one of the core enterprises in the local cluster
of enterprises. Other revenue decreased from RMB73.1 million
in 2014 to RMB61.8 million in 2015, representing a decrease
of 15.5%. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the
aggregate amount of government grants and interest income,
which amounted to RMB24.4 million and RMB36.6 million
respectively in 2015 (2014: RMB29.3 million and RMB43.6
million, respectively).

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consisted primarily of
advertising and promotion expenses, remuneration and
employee benefits for our sales and marketing personnel, rental
expenses, packaging and transportation expenses, depreciation
and amortisation expenses of our properties used for sales
and marketing activities and other miscellaneous expenses.
Adbvertising and promotion expenses primarily include fees paid
for event sponsorship and television, magazine and billboard
advertising. Selling and distribution expenses increased from
RMB133.5 million in 2014 to RMB206.8 million in 2015,
representing an increase of 54.9%. The advertising and
promotion expenses and the support to distributors amounted
to RMB77.0 million (2014: RMB40.5 million) and RMB104.4
million (2014: RMB58.8 million), respectively. Selling and
distribution expenses represented approximately 17.6% of the
revenue in 2015 (2014: 11.0%).
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Lo BEEeES R AAREE244
BAETRARE36.6RET(2014
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Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses consisted primarily
of remuneration and employee benefits for the Group’s
administrative staff, travel and transportation expenses, general
office expenses, stamp duty and other miscellaneous expenses.
Administrative and other operating expenses were RMB119.2
million in 2015 (2014: RMB88.3 million). The research and
development expenses amounted to RMB73.4 million (2014:
RMB43.4 million) and the proportion to the Group’s revenue
was 6.2% (2014: 3.6%). The administrative and other operating
expenses to total revenue was 10.1% (2014: 7.3%) in 2015.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs primarily consisted of interest charged
to the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings. Total finance
costs increased from nil in 2014 to RMB1.0 million in 2015.
As at 31 December 2015, the bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to RMB129.7 million (2014: Nil).

Profit from operations and dividend

The profit from operations for the year ended 31 December
2015 decreased by 30.5% to RMB339.9 million as compared
with RMB489.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Interim dividend of HK6.0 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB4.7 cents) per share for the first half of the year of 2015
was declared and paid to the Shareholders. For the year ended
31 December 2015, the directors have proposed a final dividend
of HK2.2 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB1.8 cents) per
share, and with the interim dividend of HK6.0 cents, the total
dividend payout ratio for the year was approximately 40%. The
directors have also proposed a special dividend of HK2.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB1.7 cents) per share. The
above proposed dividends are subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BEEENWmR DM

TBRE AL

THEREMEERY TERER
EETHREINHFMME T&
- EREERASY - —REA
ERZ - ENIER & E 5 18
¥ TR R HAALER L 2015F
BARE1192HE7T(20144F ¢
ARHGS3IEET) - M LHEE
ERAAREIZAEET(2014
£ ANRB4I34EET) (AR
SEEXEE D A6.2%(2014
F :36%)°2015F 2T H K
HEagegm Ml A 2t A
10.1%(20144F : 7.3%)

BBHEA

AEBNPBERAEEBRFERA
EE T ERITERRENF B -
4B SR N R 2014 F B T N
E2015FMARKI0OEE T ©
M2015%F 128318 » "&EE/
RITERBARKIIIEET
(2014 : BT) °

KEEELEBAEFIRKE

HZE2015F12831HILEE - K
B & B M ERE =2014F
12A318IEFEM ARKE489.0
BEITTF30.5% % ARE339.9
BEL - ARAMBRREIKR2015
FELEFHPHRE TR0
W(FEERDARELTSD) - RE
Z2015F 12 A3NBIEEE &
EEEBRMN AR EFR2.2E
WHEERPOARE1.85) » R
Bk E6.0/81 - 2FARE XL
40% - EEIBEER INRERE
FRR2.0BIEEERDARKE1.7
) o LA EEEFRIR B AR B B FRR
R FEER AT RS ik

HOSA International Limited S BB GR L 7 21



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

22

Key financial ratios

The following table sets forth certain of the Group’s major
financial ratios as at 31 December of the year indicated:

TEHYBLEE

TR AEERARFERE
12A31AMETIEMBH X

2015 2014
Current ratio MBI & 4.51 times 13 7.91 times f&
Quick ratio REpLE = 3.95 times 1% 7.15 times f&
Inventory turnover days FEREBAH 136.3 days H 101.5 days H
Debtors’ turnover days FEUER TR EE B & 80.2 days A 77.6 days H
Creditors’ turnover days JERER R AE R & 110.8 days A 77.2 days B
Gearing ratio BELE 5.9% N/A TNiE R
Working capital and working capital management EELSCREESSERE

The inventory turnover days of the Group were 136.3 days for
the year ended 31 December 2015 as compared to 101.5 days
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The inventory turnover
days increased by 34.8 days. The Group's debtors’ turnover days
increased to 80.2 days for the year ended 31 December 2015 as
compared to 77.6 days for the year ended 31 December 2014.
The Group generally allows average credit period of 90 days to
customers. The Group'’s creditors’ turnover days (including both
trade and bills payables) were 110.8 days for the year ended
31 December 2015 as compared to 77.2 days for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The overall working capital cycle has
increased from 101.9 days to 105.7 days. The overall operation
remained at a normal level.

The Group's primary objective of working capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for the
Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. The Group actively and
regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher Shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.
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Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets of
RMB1,619.1 million (2014: RMB1,542.4 million) of which cash
and bank deposits were RMB1,477.4 million (2014: RMB1,275.6
million). Total bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015 were
RMB129.7 million (2014: nil), while the bills payable were
RMB118.9 million (2014: RMB48.2 million). Bank borrowings
and bills payable were mainly used for the Group’s working
capital management, financing the purchases and financing the
dividend paid to the shareholders of the Group. The Group's
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 (total bank borrowings
divided by total assets) was 5.9%. The Group's transactions and
the monetary assets are principally denominated in Renminbi.
The Group did not experience any material difficulties in
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuations in exchange
rates during the year. The Group adopts centralised financing
and treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funding
is utilised efficiently. Conservative approach is adopted in
monitoring foreign exchange exposure and interest rate risk.
The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group
possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet
its commitments and working capital requirements. This strong
cash position enables the Group to explore investment and
business development opportunities when expanding its market
share in China.
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Use of Proceeds - Initial Public Offering FriEs B — IR AR E
The shares of the Company were listed on the main board of RATRRM2011EF12 41681
the Stock Exchange on 16 December 2011 with net proceeds BEZ P EIREMNE - BRBIREE
from the global offering of approximately RMB488.6 million FRSRUIBF AR/ AR B 488.6
(after deducting underwriting commissions and related BETHIRBEHEAE MEEER
expenses). The amounts utilised as at 31 December 2015 are as %) > 1R2015F 12 B31BEE#H
follows: SEEWT

As at 31 December 2015
7A2015612A31H

Amount of net Amount Remaining
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage proceeds utilised balance
FIERIEFEAR BoE  FSREFHE EBRSE BREE

(RME million) (RME million) (RME million)
(AR#EGET) (ARKEET) (AREEZET)

1. Expansion of distribution network 35% 171.0 171.0 -
R D HHAER
2. Enhancement of brand image 25% 1221 1221 -

through marketing and promotion

BATISHEEMNEERTRIETR

3. Expansion of production capacity 15% 73.3 7.0 66.3
T ER
4. Investment in research, 10% 48.9 48.9 -

design and development activities

WoE - RET RFAEEBEIRE

5. Development and upgrading
of supply chain and
information management systems 5% 24.4 - 24.4
BERAGRHEEREREERS

6. Funding for working capital
and other general

corporate purposes 10% 48.9 48.9 -
REEES KHM—RAT]
AgRHtES
100% 488.6 397.9 90.7

The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net RNABESIRA AT HEA2011
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in the F1NACHAMNBRER([BIRE
prospectus of the Company dated 6 December 2011 (the D WHELIINNE NGRS T
"Prospectus”). PSR %58 o
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Use of Proceeds — Share Placements

On 17 September 2013, Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited
(“Ho Born”), the Company and Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.,
as the placing agent, entered into a placing and subscription
agreement pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to
procure purchasers to subscribe for 54,500,000 existing
shares owned by Ho Born to not fewer than six independent
placees at the placing price of HK$2.85 per share, and Ho Born
conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the Company agreed
to allot and issue to Ho Born for such number of subscription
shares which is equivalent to the number of shares actually
placed under the placing at the subscription price of HK$2.85
per share. Details of these transactions are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 September 2013.

Approximately RMB116.9 million (after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses) was raised from the
subscription. The amounts utilised as of 31 December 2015 are
as follows:

FrestEfGS - ROBE

20139178 » &R EIE
BABERAR(ER]) « ABEI KR
SE(EEMAEREFLF(EAR
ERE)FTY—MMEERRER
EOBRl RERERERER
BARESERRM2858 T 2B S
&R0 ok A ¥ A 2 54,500,000
RIRBRRD RERE TR PR ARE
B ARA - MIEFHBEFIKER
BERBERARRERE RS
BERBTHERER LIESRK
192.858 L 2 RIBERE 2 &M
HEZZHBERERD - ZER
SFZHFBEINRAARBHE
201359 17HZ A -

FERRBEBSHARE 11698
Br(EBeEme REERX
%) - 2015512 A31EE 8 A
dcx Y UNNE

As at 31 December 2015
7A2015612A31H

Amount of net Amount Remaining
Purposes of net proceeds Percentage proceeds utilised balance
FERIBFEAR Botk FEREEHE EBRASHE BRER
(RME million) (RME million) (RME mitlion)
(AE®EZET) AREEZET) (AEEEHET)
1. Enhancement of brand image
through marketing and promotion 30% 35.0 34.8 0.2
FRMISHEEREERAREER
2. Expansion of production capacity 15% 17.5 - 17.5
TEFERE
3. Investment in research,
design and development activities 40% 46.9 46.9 -
e - REt AR HIRE
4. Funding for working capital and
other general corporate purposes 15% 17.5 17.5 -
REEES LHM—RAT
RgRHESR
100% 116.9 99.2 7.7

HOSA International Limited S BB GR L 7

25



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWmR DM

26

(9)

The Company does not intend to apply the remaining net
proceeds for the purposes other than those disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 September 2013.

Apart from the capital raising activity mentioned above, the
Company has not conducted any equity fund raising activities in
the past 12 months from the date of this announcement.

Capital expenditure and capital commitments

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the capital
expenditure amounted to RMB6.4 million. As at 31 December
2015, the capital commitments amounted to RMB45.0 million.

Foreign exchange risk management

Most of the sales and purchases of the Group are settled in
Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
The fluctuations in Renminbi during the year did not have any
significant effect on the Group’s results. The currency risks
that the Group is exposed to are mainly attributable to the
bank borrowings denominated in USD held by entities whose
functional currency is RMB. In addition, the Group will conduct
periodic review of its exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of
about 1,500 people. Salaries of employees are maintained
at competitive level and are reviewed annually, with close
reference to the relevant labour market and economic situation.
The Group has adopted share option schemes whereby
employees of the Group are granted options to acquire shares
in the Company. Good relationship has been maintained
between the Group and its employees. The Group also provides
internal training to staff and pays out bonuses based on staff
performance and profits of the Group.

In addition, the Group also makes efforts to ensure the safety
of our employees. The Group implements safety guidelines
and operating procedures for the production processes, and
provides employees with occupational safety education and
training to enhance their awareness of safety issues.

2015 Annual Report E£EH%
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Relationships with distributors and suppliers

The Group mainly sells its products to distributors, who placed
the Group's products to retail outlets for final sales.

The Group would make on-site visits to distributors to ensure
that they comply with the terms of the distribution agreement.
It closely monitors the inventory and performance of distributors
by requiring them to submit sales reports. The Group also
provides distributors with various training and support, provides
guidance to distributors on optimizing their product mix and
offers them various tools and training in inventory management.
In addition, the Group offers frequent training regarding its
products, brand image, sales and marketing strategies and
company policies, and it supports distributors during their
marketing efforts. The Group believes that such support
motivates distributors and improves the operational efficiency of
the Group's sales and distribution network.

Suppliers of the Group include raw material suppliers and
contract manufacturers. The Group has developed solid and
steady relationships with many of its key suppliers. Given solid
and steady relationships with the suppliers, the Group believes
that its suppliers generally provide supplies to the Group with
a priority and the Group has not experienced any material
shortage or delays in receiving supplies or services from the
suppliers during the track record period.

(h)
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3. Principal Risks and Uncertainties 3. TERBRTEERZR
A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of REENEELREREETXRENY
the Group. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised below. 2 TER M EERZBMNT o

28

a. Brand/Reputation Risk

The Company has established and maintained its Hosa
brand as an indoor sportswear brand that aims to provide
complete satisfaction in the functionality, comfort and style
of its products, primarily targeting customers with health
consciousness and spending power.

If the Group is unsuccessful in promoting its Hosa brand or fails
to maintain its brand position and market perception, consumer
acceptance of its Hosa brand may erode, and the Group’s
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects
may be materially and adversely affected.

Any negative publicity or disputes relating to the Group’s Hosa
brand, products, sponsorship activities or management, the loss
of any award or accreditation associated with the Group’s Hosa
brand or products or the use of the “Hosa"” trademark or brand
name by other businesses could materially and adversely affect
the Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.
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Market Trend

The Group's success depends on the market perception and
consumer acceptance of Hosa brand and the Group’s products,
which in large part, rely on the Group’s ability to anticipate and
respond to different consumer tastes in a timely manner.

If the Group is unable to utilise new technologies and processes,
anticipate and respond to market and fashion trends and
consumer preferences in a timely manner, demand for Hosa
products may decrease. The Group’s business would also suffer
if product creations or modifications do not respond to the
needs of customers, are not appropriately timed with market
opportunities or are not effectively brought to market. Any
failure by the Group to offer products that respond to changing
market and fashion trends and consumer preferences, or any
shift in market or fashion trends and consumer preferences
away from Hosa brand and the Group’s products, could
adversely affect consumer interest in the Group’s products.

BEEENWmR DM

iy
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Competition

Currently, the Group’s swimwear, fitness wear and sports
underwear products face different levels of competition in their
respective market sectors. As the indoor sportswear market is
ever-evolving and competitors with similar brand positioning
may emerge and intensify the current competition, there can be
no assurance that the Group will be able to compete effectively
against competitors who may have greater financial resources,
greater scales of production, superior technology, better
brand recognition and a wider, more diverse and established
distribution network. To compete effectively and maintain the
Group's market share, the Group may be forced to, among
other actions, reduce prices, provide more sales incentives to
distributors, and increase capital expenditures, which may in
turn negatively affect the Group’s profit margins, business and
financial conditions and results of operations.

Operation of Distributors

As the Group's term of agreements with distributors is generally
2 years, it is possible that their agreements with the Group
will not be renewed on favourable terms or at all. If any of
the Group’s distributors terminates or does not renew its
distribution agreement with the Group, the Group may not
be able to replace such distributor with a new and effective
distributor with similar business scale in a timely manner,
on terms acceptable to the Group, or at all. If any of the
distributors ceases its business relationship with the Group, the
Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations and
prospects could be materially and adversely affected.
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The Group mainly sold products to distributors, who
subsequently distributed our products to sub-distributors or
sold our products to end-consumers. The Group relies on its
distributors to oversee and ensure sub-distributors. The sub-
distributors’ failure to comply with the Group’s policies, such
as aggressive discounting of the retail price of the Group’s
products, could result in the erosion of goodwill, a decrease
in the market value of the Group’s Hosa brand and an
unfavourable public perception about the quality of the Group’s
products, which in turn could result in a material adverse effect
on the Group's business, financial condition, results of operation
and prospects.

The Group has no control over distributors or sub-distributors’
practice of obtaining retail spaces within department stores.
If the Group'’s distributors fail to secure retail spaces within
the department stores on commercially reasonable terms,
the Group's distributors may not be able to find alternative
locations in areas that offer similar business environments,
and the Group’s competitors may move into such retail spaces
previously occupied by the Group’s distributors. As a result,
the Group's sales performance may be materially and adversely
affected.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group’s production process is carried out with low emissions
and low energy consumption, and it will not produce great amount
of pollutants. The Group has been endeavoring to ensure that the
production process is in compliance with the relevant environmental
rules and regulations. In the past, to the best of our knowledge the
Group has not been in breach of any relevant environmental rules
and regulations and has not been imposed any relevant penalty. It
is expected that the future operational activities of the Group would
not be significantly affected by the environmental policies. The
Group strives for energy conservation and consumption reduction.
In reducing the operating costs, the Group also puts efforts on
environmental protection.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company is listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group's operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong.
During the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this
report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all
the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong,
and there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Looking Ahead

Looking forward, there will still be tremendous room for growth of
the PRC sports and health industry which is at the flourishing stage,
and the growth of demand will remain strong. The construction
of stadiums, which was driven by the urbanisation in the PRC, the
growing number of consumers pursuing healthy lifestyle, the trend
of fitness, the promotion of sports and exercises and support to
health industry from the PRC government and the rising demand of
consumers for products and services in terms of personalised need
and professionalism provide the Group with an important opportunity
for future development. The Group will maintain its leading position in
the existing sportswear business while promoting the implementation
and enforcement of strategies with respect to sports and health
industry in all aspects.

Meanwhile, we see that the Chinese economy is still at a difficult stage
to transform and upgrade in 2016 and the traditional business of the
Company will encounter major challenges including intensifying online
competition, poor performance of sales channels such as off-line malls
and specialty stores, and the retained sales outlets of the Company
may need further adjustments in 2016. Besides, the strategies of
the sports and health business of the Group are still at the stage of
model construction and product research and development, which
is required more investment, costs and expenditure while generating
less income. The aforementioned factors will have larger impact on
the performance of the Group in 2016.
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For 2016, the Group will continue to promote its development
strategies for the sports and health industry and focus on consumers’
sports and health lifestyle. With the establishment of a sports and
health ecosphere by developing and integrating industry resources
based on sports and health products and big data, it links consumers,
scenarios and products with the service provider in a mobile sports
and health community to cater for the consumers’ sports and health
lifestyle and provide them with comprehensive 3A (“Anytime,
Anywhere, Anyway") services.

In 2016, the Group will continue to fully commence the
implementation of its sports and health industry strategies with the
focus on the following tasks:

1. Based on the successful operation of pilot Hosa Sports Health
Experience Store, propel strongly the establishment of this type
of store to the increase revenue of each store and the brand
image;

2. based on consumers’ needs, develop new sports and health
products and consolidate resources of sports and health
products and services to explore new business growth point;

3. successively develop and launch intelligent sports and health
products, such as intelligent apparel;

4. by consolidating industry resources, gradually build up the
comprehensive sports and health ecosphere.

The Group believes that the promotion and implementation of the
above measures will tremendously consolidate the competitive edges
of the Group in sports and health sector in the future. Although
there might be impact on the results indicators of the Group in a
short term due to the transformation and upgrading, it is considered
to be an inevitable stage in a bid to better enhance the long-term
competitiveness and create more space for development of the Group.
We believe that the implementation of the Group's sports and health
industry strategies will form the foundation for future development
and create a huge room for future development and growth of
the Group as well as more value and returns to the consumers and
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESREREEE

Directors

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the business of the Group. The Board currently consists of six
directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”), including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The following

S

EFeHARERBZEEMRFRBREEY
BREE—REERE EFSSRMBREF
(TEFZ DMK - BR=2WITEELR =28
FRITEE - TREJEHEZTEHNENE

table sets forth information regarding members of the Board.

R

Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities
HE ZEBH Fix B AEBRBE
Mr. Shi Hongliu 2 September 2010 50 chairman and executive corporate strategic planning
Director and overall business
development of the Group
iRz ynbivta 201049 A2 B EERNHNITES REBHDERR AR BIFIRE
¥BER
Mr. Shi Hongyan 2 September 2010 47 vice chairman, chief developing and implementing
executive officer and operation plans, and
executive Director monitoring the overall
manufacturing activities of
the Group
METSHE SE A4 201069H2H BIESR  TBEIHNK BRMEEAEEN S ETE
HITES NEBRRBAELY
Mr. Shi Zhixiong 1 December 2015 42 executive Director overseeing the production and

MRS

2015512 A1H
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ESREAREEE

Name Appointment Date Age Position Roles and Responsibilities

HE ZEEH FiR B ABRBE

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan 23 November 2011 54 independent non-executive  attending meetings of the
Director Board to perform duties,

but not participating in the
day-to-day management of
the business operations of
the Group

TEF HEEEEGR AT
BTe2HAREEERE
BOHBER

n

[SEN pon 2011411 823H BN FEH

=\

Mr. Yao Ge 7 June 2011 56 independent non-executive  attending meetings of the
Director Board to perform duties,

but not participating in the
day-to-day management of
the business operations of
the Group

RS 201146 A7H BUERITES HEEESSRABITRE -
Brg2HAEEERKE
BOHHPER

Mr. He Wenyi 1 December 2015 42 independent non-executive  attending meetings of the
Director Board to perform duties,

but not participating in the
day-to-day management of
the business operations of
the Group

X FEFEE 20154 12A1H BYERTES LEEESSRABITIE -
Bre2HAEEERE
BOHHPER
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Executive Directors
Mr. Shi Hongliu

Aged 50, is the founder of the Hosa brand. He was appointed as the
chairman and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010.
Mr. Shi has over 28 years of experience in the apparel industry and is
primarily responsible for the corporate strategic planning and overall
business development of the Group. From 1983 to 1996, he was a sole
proprietor in the apparel industry where he primarily engaged in distributing
sportswear for women in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. From 1996
to 2011, he assumed various positions at Fujian Province Jinjiang City
Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. (“Haosha Garments”). From September 1996
to March 2000, he was the chief brand manager of Haosha Garments
responsible for formulating, implementing brand strategy and improving the
competitiveness of Hosa brand. From March 2000 to March 2006, he was
the general manager of Haosha Garments responsible for developing and
implementing business development strategies and overseeing the overall
administrative and business activities of this company. From March 2006 to
February 2011, he was the supervisor of Haosha Garments. Since November
1997, he has been a director of Haosha International (H.K.) Limited (“Haosha
H.K.”) and is responsible for overlooking the operation, development
strategy as well as corporate investment activities of Haosha H.K. Since
October 2005, being one of the founders of Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co.,
Ltd. (“Haosha Industry”), he has been the chairman of the board responsible
for overseeing the operation and investment activities of Haosha Industry
and general manager since January 2011. Mr. Shi Hongliu is a brother of Mr.
Shi Hongyan. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi Hongliu had not been a
director of any other listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi was selected as one of the “Top Ten Meritorious Entrepreneurs”
(TAMEEEZK) at China's International Fashion Week by China National
Textile and Apparel Council (fF Bl%74% T 21 €) in 2007, and “Brand China
Person of the Year (Apparel Industry)” (Faf2H BI(ARFEETTE)FEAY) by
Brand China Industry Alliance (f 58 R EIZEZEREER) in 2010. He is also the
honorary chairman of the Chamber of Commerce of Jinjiang in Shanghai (1=

BEIREREER)

Mr. Shi completed a diploma program for general managers of enterprises (42
#I2ERFE) of China Europe International Business School (47 BB T 72 225
in December 2008.

Mr. Shi Hongliu is responsible for setting up overall future strategies of the
group, the financial and operational strategies and managing the overall
operations in Fujian Jinjiang and Beijing head office. Mr. Shi is also the
ultimate in-charge of the management accounting of the PRC subsidiaries
and the treasury functions of the group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Shi Hongyan

Aged 47, was appointed as the vice chairman, chief executive officer
and executive Director of the Company on 2 September 2010. Mr. Shi
Hongyan has over 20 years of experience in the apparel industry and is
primarily responsible for developing and implementing operation plans, and
monitoring the overall manufacturing activities of the Group. From 1988 to
1996, he was a sole proprietor in the apparel industry where he primarily
engaged in distributing sportswear for women in Beijing, Shanghai and
Guangzhou. From 1996 to 2011, he assumed various positions at Haosha
Garments. From September 1996 to March 2000, he was the director
of Haosha Garments responsible for establishing management systems
and overseeing the administrative and business operations. From March
2000 to March 2006, he was the chief production manager responsible
for formulating and implementing the production plans and supervising
the production process. From March 2006 to February 2011, he was the
director and general manager of Haosha Garments. Since October 2005,
he has been the vice chairman of the board of Haosha Industry. And from
October 2005 to January 2011, he was the general manager of Haosha
Industry where he was responsible for implementing production plans and
overseeing the production operation. Since January 2011, he has been the
vice general manager of Haosha Industry. Mr. Shi Hongyan is a brother of
Mr. Shi Hongliu. Apart from being a Director, Mr. Shi Hongyan had not been
a director of any other listed company in the past three years.

Mr. Shi Hongyan currently assumes leadership roles in various institutions,
the details of which are set out in tabular format below.

Terms of Office Position
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Name of Institution

HEEE

August 2004-now
20045F8AES

member of the first standing committee
BEFKEEEZE

vice chairman of the first council
HEEEERER

September 2005-now
2005F9AES

February 2006-now
2006F2 AES

vice chairman of the eighth council
F\EEEGEER

July 2008-now vice chairman of the second council
2008F7RES E_EEBEERRER

August 2008-now vice chairman of the second council

2008F8AE4S F_EEFEgRIgR
2009-now member
2009F &5 £B8

Quanzhou City Trademark Association

FMTERHE

Jinjiang City Textile and Apparel Association
ERNIEE e

Jinjiang City Association of Industry and Commerce
AR T

Quanzhou City Association of Quality and Technical
Supervision
FMNTRERNES G

Fujian Province Apparel Industry Association

BEERERMITEDS

The Eleventh Jinjiang City Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference
REARBGSHEERE T ERIMEE®
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Shi Hongyan was selected as one of the First Outstanding Young
Enterprising Talents in Quanzhou (&& &/ & FEFHEIZEAA) in April 2005
and Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Fujian Province (B E2&EH S F
3 R) in November 2006.

Mr. Shi Hongyan completed a diploma program for chief executive officers
of enterprises ({>Z 42 & = A FHE M) of the Economics College of Peking
University (3t R R Z24E 7 22 85) in 2003.

Mr. Shi Hongyan is mainly responsible for the public relationships of
the group including attending different functions/events. He acts as the
spokesman in these event/functions.

Mr. Shi Zhixiong

Aged 42, was appointed as the executive Director on 1 December 2015.
Mr. Shi Zhixiong worked at the research and development department of
Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. which is a fabric, dyeing and printing products
manufacturer, from 1996 to 2003 with his last position as manager. Mr.
Shi Zhixiong served as the sales director responsible for sales and marketing
development and deputy general manager responsible for implementing
business development strategies and overseeing the business activities
of Haosha Garments Co., Ltd. from 2003 to 2010 and from 2010 to
2015 respectively. Mr. Shi Zhixiong possesses profound knowledge and
experiences in production and supply chain management.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 November 2011. She has over 25 years of experience in financial
management and corporate finance and had worked in an international
accounting firm and other companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. She is currently the chief financial officer and company secretary
of China Lilang Limited (FBIF|EBE R A R]) (stock code: 1234). Ms. Ko is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Apart from being a
Director, Mr. Ko had not been a director of any other listed company in the
past three years. Ms. Ko graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a professional diploma in management accountancy in November
1984.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Yao Ge

Aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
7 June 2011. After his graduation in September 1994 to late 1994, Mr.
Yao was independently exploring the development of Japanese traditional
garments and its overall apparel market in Japan. In December 1994, he
returned to China and independently explored the Chinese apparel market
and industrial textile structure. In October 1996, he started working at the
marketing centre of China Fashion Association (FF BIRZE :Z5TEMHE), and
was later promoted to the deputy secretary general in December 1999 and
the supervisor of the marketing centre in February 2001. He was appointed
as the deputy director of China’s Professional Fashion Models Committee
(FPEIBEERFRIBIEZ B ) in July 2002. Since May 2003, he has been
the chairman of the board of directors of Beijing Oriental Bentley Culture
Development Co., Ltd. (At RE FEF L EH D). Apart from being a
Director, Mr. Yao had not been a director of any listed company in the past
three years.

Mr. Yao received silver award for Tokyo 21st Clothing Fashion Paintings
and Crafts Exhibition (RRFE21EREFRITEMFTERE) in 1993 and
recognition award for Japanese Apparel Fashion Design Contest (H AR &
MATERETEEER) in 1994,

Mr. Yao received his college diploma in journalism from Shenyang Radio
and Television University (&5 EIEERAE) in November 1988 and went
to Japan for advanced study in 1990. He completed a two-year Japanese
language course at Asahi International School (38 H BIBXE24R) in September
1992 and a two years’ advanced study in garment design at Tokyo Shimizu
Institute (B A/E7KZPT) in September 1994 and received a certificate in
garment design.

Mr. He Wenyi

Aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-executive director on
1 December 2015. Mr. He Wenyi is the deputy director of the Peking
University Institute for Sport Science as well as the executive officer and the
researcher of China Institute for Sports Value under the Peking University.

Mr. He Wenyi studied in the Department of Philosophy of Peking University,
College of Philosophy and Sociology of Beijing Normal University and School
of Public Administration of Central South University. He focused on the
researches regarding cultural industries and sports industries in the Peking
University Institute for Cultural Industries from 2001 to 2009.He works at
the Peking University Institute for Sport Science from 2009 up to now and
his major research areas are sports industries, cultural industries, intellectual
property rights, philosophy (ethics, religious studies), etc.
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Mr. He Wenyi participated in the research and formulation of the reform
and development policies of national sports industries and has played a role
in the formulation of development plans of winter sports in China. Mr. He
was also the associate editor of Annual Report on Development of Sports
Industry in China, the associate editor of Development Report of Sports
Industry in Beijing, the editorial board member of the Annual Report of
Chinese Cultural Industries, the professional assessor of Guiding Fund — 2 —
for the Development of Sports Industry in Beijing, the professional assessor
of Support Fund for Cultural Industries in Beijing. Moreover, he hosted the
formulation of 13th Five-Year Plan for Sports Industry in various counties in
Beijing.

Senior Management

Mr. Lui Wai Ming

Aged 45, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company
on 7 August 2015. He holds an Executive Master Degree in Business
Administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lui Wai Ming is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lui Wai Ming
has extensive experience in auditing, accounting, investment, financial and
corporate management for over 20 years. Mr. Lui Wai Ming is currently an
independent non-executive director of Xiao Nan Guo Restaurants Holdings
Limited, a main board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code: 3666).
He was an independent non-executive director of Tai Shing International
(Holdings) Limited, a GEM board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code:
8103) from 22 May 2014 to 29 January 2016 and Golden Shield Holdings
(Industrial) Limited, a main board listed company in Hong Kong (stock code:
2123) from 12 January 2015 to 11 May 2015, during the period he focused
on investigation into the outstanding audit issues and the legal proceedings,
and the company is currently under liquidation.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chiu Ming King was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 7 August 2015. Mr. Chiu currently
serves as a director of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK)
Limited. He has over 10 years of experience in the company secretarial field
and provides professional services to various listed companies.

Mr Chiu has been an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS") since 2003 and became a fellow member of the
HKICS since September 2015. He has been a member of the Membership
Committee and Professional Services Panel of HKICS and the HKICS’
representative in the Young Coalition Professional Group of The Hong Kong
Coalition of Professional Services since 2013.

Mr Chiu obtained a bachelor of arts from University of Toronto in Canada

in June 1999 and received a master of arts in professional accounting and
information systems from City University of Hong Kong in November 2003.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a transparent and
responsible organization which is open and accountable to the Shareholders.
The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate governance set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“"CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and has adopted sound
corporate governance practices to meet the legal and commercial standards,
focusing on areas such as internal control, fair disclosure and accountability
to the Shareholders to ensure the transparency and accountability of all
operations of the Company. The Company believes that effective corporate
governance is an essential factor to create more value for the Shareholders.
The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate governance
practices of the Group from time to time to ensure that the Group is led by
an effective Board in order to optimise return for the Shareholders.

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, the Company
has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board

The Board consists of six Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors. The executive Directors are
Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chairman), Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice Chairman) and Mr. Shi
Zhixiong. The independent non-executive Directors are Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, Mr.
He Wenyi and Mr. Yao Ge. Among members of the Board, Mr. Shi Hongliu
is the elder brother of Mr. Shi Hongyan. Save as disclosed herein, to the best
knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial, business or family
relationship among the members of the Board. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include convening Shareholders’ meetings and
reporting on the work of the Board to the Shareholders at Shareholders’
meetings as may be required by applicable laws, implementing resolutions
passed at Shareholders’ meetings, determining the Company’s business
plans and investment plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and
final accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred on it by the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
and applicable laws. The senior management is delegated with the authority
and responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day management and
operations of the Group. The Board meets regularly to review the financial
and operating performance of the Company, and considers and approves
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The composition
of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having sound industry
knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning experience and/
or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the
Company considers that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent and that they have met the specific independence guidelines as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors have separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management to fulfill their duties and, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expense. All Directors also have access to the company secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable
rules and regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
Board committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed, are
kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance
of the Company, and considers and approves the overall strategies and
policies of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The chairman and chief executive officer of the Company are two distinct

and separate positions, which are held by Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi
Hongyan, respectively, both being executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is Mr. Chiu Ming King. Mr. Chiu, who is a director
of Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited providing
professional services to various listed companies. Although Mr. Chiu is not a
full time employee of the Company, he is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters. Details of the biography of Mr. Chiu are set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31
December 2015, Mr. Chiu received not less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training. The primary contact person of the Company with the
Company Secretary is the financial manager of the Company, Mr. Hui Siu
Wing.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company with terms of three years commencing
from 16 December 2014 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan and Mr. Yao Ge and from 1
December 2015 for Mr. He Wenyi.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board approved a new board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) in August 2013. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company will
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the Board has
established the following Board committees to oversee the particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. Each of these committees is consisted wholly of or of
a majority of independent non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has been
established, in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules,
with written terms of reference in compliance with Code Provision C.3.3
of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group and to provide advice and comments to the Board. The
members meet regularly with the external auditors and the Company’s
senior management for the review, supervision and discussion of the
Company’s financial reporting and internal control procedures and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Ms.
Ko Yuk Lan, Mr. He Wenyi and Mr. Yao Ge, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Ms. Ko Yuk Lan, who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the meetings of the Audit Committee on 6 March 2015 and 18
August 2015, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
six months ended 30 June 2015 respectively, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, and the selection and appointment of the
external auditors. There had been no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established, in compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26
of the Listing Rules, with written terms of reference in compliance with
Code Provision of B.1.2 of the CG Code. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee are to determine the policies in relation to
human resources management, to review the compensation strategies, to
determine the remuneration packages of senior executives and managers,
to approve the terms of the service contract of the executive Directors,
to assess the performance of the executive Directors, to recommend and
establish annual and long-term performance criteria and targets as well as
to review and supervise the implementation of all executive compensation
packages and employee benefit plans. Pursuant to its terms of reference, the
Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management of the Company. The Board expects the Remuneration
Committee to exercise independent judgment and ensures that executive
Directors do not participate in the determination of their own remuneration.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 6 March 2015,
the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to the Directors and senior management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established, in compliance with
Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Code Provision of A.5.2 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, making recommendation to the Board on selection of
candidates for directorships, appointment, reappointment of Directors and
Board succession and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee will also give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, and the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 6 March 2015,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the Board
pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the Board in
compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include (a)
to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the
Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and general meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out below:

EEERBAE

ARRHBEERRERBESTSEREEE
JASTRIZED. 3. 16T R STR My — B E
REELEETSRET 2@ 6HELRBRIAR
RAMEERERBRREER - AAESEIRY
BRZ#Z  ORIMERAEEEERER
BEEENEIIRSESEER (ORI RER
RAREETERREERETENBRENE
BoOHE  REKEREARAEEREE
NERMREERT ENERTENRARTM
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IEA RN B EE QIR E P ROIEE

ERNRESHERY
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HEARREZESRT  FiTZE8T FWEE
2 REZEeMEEMARERENEALRE
ROERELTIOT

Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee ~ Meeting
] ERER yHzES REZEE REAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu i 4/4 N/A TEF N/A TEF N/A TER U
(Chairman of the Board) (BEER)
Mr. Shi Hongyan T BIE 5T 474 N/A TNEF N/A NEF N/A TNEF 0/1
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong (resignedasa B HELA4 (72201595 A 17 N/A & N/A TEF 1N "
Director and member of Nomination 26 EBIEERIELEE
Committee on 26 May 2015) 2K 8)
Mr. Zhao Yan (resigned as a Director #8144 (72015512 A1 33 N/A TNEF 11 N/A NER 11
and a member of Remuneration RRIZERFHEES
Committee on 1 December 2015) KE)
Mr. Shi Zhixiong (appointed as HEEEEE (R20155127 17 N/A TNEF N/A TNEF NATER  NATER
a Director and a member of 1RERERESREM
Remuneration Committee on 1 LEENE)
December 2015)
Indkoendent non-executive Directors BV FETTEE
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SEN: Len 4/4 22 N/A @A N/A TNEA 11
Mr. Wang Yao (resigned as a Director  F#B4%4 (R2015F1281H 33 22 11 1/1 on
and a member of all three board BAEEREH=-(EES
committees on 1 December 2015) LEEKE)
Mr. Yao Ge S 4/4 212 11 1”1 11
Mr. He Wenyi (appointed as a Director i X254 (7220159127 7N N/A @A N/A TNEF NATER  NATER
and a member of Remuneration 1BEZEAEZREMW
Committee on 1 December 2015) REEWE)

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director.
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Continuous Professional Development

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional development.
According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors received
the following training with an emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a director of a listed company in compliance with the new requirement of
the Corporate Governance Code on continuous professional development

during the year ended 31 December 2015:

TRERRE

HEERRE

EFCERADEERTAEAGSESTAE
NIETHBFESELRENRT - REAR
BIFE 28k - MEIZE2015F 12 A31HIEF
B BRIEEEIUTIIGR  CHERMEE
ASTRI BB EEERRETENTRE  EE
RETMRAFTNEZNAE - B BE

Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws,
Rules and Regulations

Accounting/Financial/
Management or
Other Professional Skills

¥R GEE - RAR a5t M EER
EREH HithEH# R
Attend Attend
Read Seminars/ Read Seminars/
Name of Director materials Briefings materials Briefings
HE HE
- mae
BEEEH BEEHR IGE = BEEHR IGEE=
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu vt 4 4 v v
(Chairman of the Board)) (EE2TE)
Mr. Shi Hongyan TEBHE 55 v v v v
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1 December 2015)
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Committee on 1 December 2015)
Independent non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan SEN; Len v v v v
Mr. Wang Yao (resigned as a Director and ~ 1244 (R2015F 12 A1 BETES 4 4 4 v
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on 1 December 2015)
Mr. Yao Ge BRLE v 4 v v
Mr. He Wenyi (appointed as a Director AXELE (R2015F12710EZ v 4 v v
and a member of Remuneration TRESRFMEZEEKE)

Committee on 1 December 2015)
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Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities transactions by
the Directors. Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors and all
Directors declared that they have complied with the Model Code for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
at that date and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going concern basis
in accordance with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditors of the Company. The
fees for the audit and review services provided by the auditors to the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB2.55 million.
Fees for China tax advisory and Hong Kong tax advisory amounted to
RMB 135,000 and HK$ 150,000 respectively for the financial year.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company concerning their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 72 to
73 of this annual report.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s assets
and Shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control and risk management systems on a regular
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. In the meantime, the Company constantly allocates
resources to internal control and risk management systems, reasonably (but
not absolutely) guarantees that no material misstatement or loss will be
incurred, and manages (but not eliminates) the risks of failing to achieve
business objectives. The Company has established written policies and
procedures applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness
of internal controls and risk management. The Company also has a
process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks to
the achievement of its operational objective. This process is subject to
continuous improvement and was in place throughout 2015 and up to the
date of this report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to the individual
department, which is accountable for its own conduct and performance,
and is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board. The
Company has established internal audit function and carries out reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management, systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the
dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. Such review and assessment covered the financial, compliance
and operational controls as well as risk management mechanisms. The Board
believes that the existing risk management and internal control system is
adequate and effective.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at Room 4105-08, 41/F, Sun
Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the secretary of the Company by mail at Room 4105-08,
41/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or by
email at hosa@wsfg.hk. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board'’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions,
inquiries and customer complaints, to the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Constitutional Document

There has been no change in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of the
Company. The Board also recognises that effective communication with its
investors is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new
investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors of the Company and the Shareholders
will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of
the Group through the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes all corporate
communications on the Company’s website at www.hosa.cn. The Board
maintains regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from
time to time to keep them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations,
management and plans. The chairman of the Board and members of various
Board committees will attend the annual general meeting of the Company
to answer questions raised by the Shareholders. The resolution of every
important proposal will be proposed at general meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company is conducted by way of poll
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be announced at
general meetings and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. In addition, the Company regularly meets with institutional
investors, financial analysts and financial media, and promptly releases
information related to any significant progress of the Company, so as to
promote the development of the Company through mutual and efficient
communications.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Principal Activities

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design
and production of a wide range of mid-to-high end sportswear products,
including swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear, which are sold
under the well-known Hosa and Water Cube brand.

Business Review

A business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 12 to 37 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of
this report of the directors.

Subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2015
are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 74 to 143 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK6.0 cents (equivalent to approximately RMB4.7
cents) per share was paid to our Shareholders during the year. The Board
recommended the distribution of a final dividend of HK2.2 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB1.8 cents) per share and a special dividend of HK2.0
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB1.7 cents) per share in cash to
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a total
payout of approximately RMB58.4 million, subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting (“AGM") to be held on Friday,
29 April 2016.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 144 to 148. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are set out
in note 22 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$80,783,000. Details of the distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31

December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB2,200,000 (2014:
RMB2,005,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2015 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shi Hongliu (Chasmman)

Mr. Shi Hongyan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong (resigned on 26 May 2015)
Mr. Zhao Yan (resigned on 1 December 2015)

Mr. Shi Zhixiong (appointed on 1 December 2015)
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Report of the Directors

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Ko Yuk Lan

Mr. Wang Yao (resigned on 1 December 2015)
Mr. Yao Ge

Mr. He Wenyi (appointed on 1 December 2015)

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

Each of the executive Directors on the Board had entered into a service
contract with the Company for terms of three years commencing from 16
December 2011 for Mr. Shi Hongliu, Mr. Shi Hongyan and Mr. Zhao Yan
and from 1 December 2015 for Mr. Shi Zhixiong and thereafter may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing or payment in
lieu of such notice served by either party on the other. The service contracts
are automatically renewed upon expiration.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors on the Board had entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company with terms of three years
commencing from 16 December 2014 for Ms. Ko Yuk Lan and Mr. Yao Ge,
from 9 May 2014 for Mr. Wang Yao and from 1 December 2015 for Mr.
He Wenyi and thereafter may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by the respective independent non-executive
Director on the Company, and by immediate notice in writing served by the
Company on the respective independent non-executive Director.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. He Wenyi and Mr. Shi Zhixiong, being appointed by the Board to fill in a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first annual general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at the forth
coming general meting.

In accordance with article 84 of the Company'’s articles of association, Mr.
Shi Hongyan and Ms. Ko Yuk Lan will retire from the Board by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 38 to 44 of this annual report.
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EEERE

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed herein, there was no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2015.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests and short positions which the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company are taken and deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

ESRNEGUNES

BT XETEEIN » ARE] - HIEERARSKET
B AR ET A AR ESRETHEER
ek fEEAERD - WAREZ2015F12 A
31 B I FERFERFDARAERNEREL

EERRSITHRAEBRRKR®D - 188
ROREFNERERAR

R2015F 12 A31H » A ARIEERESTTH
ABRARE REEEEE(EERELHRS
B0 FH MAEEG ) EXVED) Bk H
(M%7 1) ~ MBERD RESHF - EEUTRE
BHE N EEDIEXVERET KR8 D B E A
DAL ERSAR (BREBEEAR
HERAINEBIESUEZEIERB AR RRES
MERITRABHEBNERIAR) AR
BAAREES R EIENIEIS2HERETE
HERRMA - SREIZESTRIZEMNE AR R R
B T ZS SOA R

Number of
Shares subject to
options granted

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

under the the Company/
Capacity/ Number of Pre-IPO Share associated
Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest Shares Option Scheme corporations
REERAH
BEATRE IR RARAR,/
FHEIR HEEEH
BRES R IREEREA
Ex=png NCIECE 55 REtE R EE RO E Bk
Mr. Shi Hongliu® The Company Interests of controlled 830,384,859 - 50.06%
corporations (Long position)
MRS O PN REZEGLEE E S (#F2)
Mr. Shi Hongyan Ho Born Investment Beneficial interests 26,233 - 26.23%
Holdings Limited
MEIRHE ST A4 EBREERERAR B
Notes: Bt -
(1) Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited are (1) AAREZERBERATDREABEEEFRAT

beneficially owned as to 49.85% by Mr. Shi Hongliu. Mr. Shi Hongliu is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 829,884,859 Shares held by Ho Born
Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) to hold any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Option Schemes
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain
eligible persons an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and
motivating them to optimise their future performance and efficiency to the
Group and/or rewarding them for their past contributions, and attracting
and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Options
to subscribe for an aggregate of 20,500,000 Shares were granted on 23
November 2011. The exercise price per Share is HK$1.28, representing a
discount of 20% to the global offering price per Share. Save as disclosed
below, no further options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme prior to the Listing Date. All options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme may be exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period
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BRETE
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ERTERE B ([E R AR SR EIREST
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EARENKS  WHBRSERBRAENESR
M RERBRBE - &/ IR ESBEENE
R4 T H2E) - ARSI M BB ek LAE A 75 SN B2
SUREENERR  BEXIKNBEER,
SEERENRIEEFNRAEENRE - %
REEMNEEBALTHERFFERITBIER -
A] R84 $£20,500,000 A% I 15 H) B& A #E 2
201111 A23B R - BRITHEEAH1.2878
T BEBRBRMDEIREEEIE20% - B
TXIRTEES - R LT BHRT  BEREE R
N ER BT BE PR L EARE - AT
BREEH R AREERERETERDAER
FERHR T 55 RAT1E

Maximum percentage of options exercisable

AT IEBERENRSEDL

Anytime after the first anniversary of the Listing Date
B &R F R AR

Anytime after the second anniversary of the Listing Date
7 B EE IR R M (I

Anytime after the third anniversary of the Listing Date
T B S =R 1R A (RIS ]

30 % of the total number of options granted
BRI ERELZH30%

30 % of the total number of options granted

BRI B E R 2R30%

40 % of the total number of options granted

B BAEAZR40%
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme MR2015F 12 A31H0 » BREH X AHAEEHE

as at 31 December 2015 are as follows: AT 23R HA BB IR E SR IF 0 T
As at No. of share As at 31
1 January option December
2015 BRERE 2015
M20155F Exercised A2015F
Name =7 1818 217 12A831H
Past Directors BE
Mr. Zhao Yan il Eptast 3,260,000 - 3,260,000
(resigned on 1 December 2015) (7201512 B 1HEHE)
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong DIESEE 2,379,000 680,000 1,699,000
(resigned on 26 May 2015) (FA20154F5 26 A& (E)
Senior management BREERE
In aggregate At 2,330,000 850,000 1,480,000
Other employees Hittfg &
In aggregate A 5,812,000 1,897,000 3,915,000
Others Hith
In aggregate EE 1,687,000 626,000 1,061,000
Total et 15,468,000 4,053,000 11,415,000

No share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were HE2015F 12A318LFE - MEREE X
lapsed or cancelled for the year ended 31 December 2015. 4,053,000 share N ERIBARET 8 L AR AR B sk
options were exercised during the same period. T8 © 4,053,00017 B AR 7S R ERZETT {6 -

The total number of shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share RAFHREE - §RAFHEERBREREIT
Option Scheme is 11,415,000, representing approximately 0.7% of the HEITHRDEE 5 ££11,415,0000% @ (AR
Company's issued share capital as at the date of this annual report. AR EITIRAKI0.7% ©

Share Option Scheme EREstE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”) on ARARF20114E11 A23 B H A EARE &
23 November 2011 for the purpose of giving certain eligible persons an (THEREEED) EEG TETEEBALR
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and motivating them RATHEEEAREOKS - WHEFEENE
to optimise their future performance and efficiency to the Group and/or BARNEEMESERBRNE - &ABE
rewarding them for their past contributions, and attracting and retaining, EPRENERG TIEE) - ARSI KB B AR
or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons b7 R EZFH A EERR - BRIKINTY
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to BEZRSEBBBAREEEFRNAER
the performance, growth or success of the Group. KRR - BRINIINAEEBATHERRBER
STRAMR o
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e. 1,600,000,000 Shares. The maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board and
not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the Company
HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days after the offer
date. The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; and

(c)  the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Listing Date, after which no further options will be granted or
offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force
and effect in all other respects. All options granted prior to the termination
of the Share Option Scheme and not then exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

As at 31 December 2015, no option had been granted by the Board under
the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 160,000,000, representing approximately 9.7% of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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Arrangement for Directors to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of the Company or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as at
31 December 2015, the persons or corporations (other than Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EEREROIEFNRH

B EXRBRAERT &) I FTiERE S - N EE
RERERBEAAAAREMNES BESS
MVECB SR R F 2R AR - FEARREE AR
REE A RME S MR - MEE I ET
BEAIZEEN : ARE) - HERARSEMS
I A R AT L 28 - BUR AR A E
FAFEB AR R A AR EAME A E R
AR E 7 (BEESR) MBI -

FERRRRD R EBERDOEDR
15993

RARAEMEESAERSTRASHH  ®
2015128318 » U NATSEBE (I IERR
RIZEE N GmTTHRAE ) R R D K& AHE
B BBEREEFRHAEIEIEXVEE
2R3 EREME B B T AR AR SOk
B HBEINAREES R EIEHIZE33616R
FTHRENESSMARERSKE

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding in

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares the Company
EAR D R RAER
RER AR 51, EatE KRB E BRBED
Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited® Beneficial interests 710,076,859 42.80%
(Long position)
SRR EERAR AT EniEn (4F%)
Well Born Industrial Group Limited® Beneficial interests 119,808,000 7.22%
(Long position)
BEABXEEARRLQFO BantEn (5F7)
Keen Mate Limited® Beneficial interests 132,817,141 8.01%
(Long position)
Bt (4F&)
Mr. Zhang Jionglong® Interests of controlled corporation 132,817,141 8.01%
(Long position)
SRIABE SR AP REZEGLEE S (4FE)
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Notes:

(1 Mr. Shi Hongliu and Mr. Shi Hongyan, executive Directors, are two of the directors of
Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited and Well Born Industrial Group Limited.

(2) Mr. Zhang Jionglong is the sole shareholder of Keen Mate Limited, he is therefore
deemed to be interested in all shares held by Keen Mate Limited which held
132,817,141 shares of the Company (representing approximately 8.01% of the
Company's issued share capital as at 31 December 2015).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would require to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company made the
following purchases of its own Shares on the Stock Exchange:

EEGHRE

Hiat

(1) WMITEFR T E R RS REE
BAERARREAEXEBERATNNEE
o

(2) SR AMBE S 4 AKeen Mate Limited 89 M —ARE - #i
I 48 A7 Keen Mate Limited3 & HFT A B9
FEEERETD - HEEARRA132,817,141 KD
(EARATR2015F12 A31H 2 2B EITRA
#498.01%) °

B ECEESN 0 2015512 A318 » AR
RIEENESTHRABI THMEBEE T A EMA
TICEER AR BN M ABRIR D R B IR
BEERASEEXVEFE2R3D KX
AWBETARDNBNERSAE - REFAEXR
AIRIEE S M EIEDIE336 KR EFRENE
AR AR -

BE  HEIEEARQF LHRES

B=E2015F12A31HILFE - ARANBR
FIBERIAT B &R -

Number of Approximate purchase Aggregate

Shares consideration consideration

Month of repurchase in 2015 repurchased per Share paid

R20155ETEEMN A 6 EBEROEE BERRHOBENRE ENRERHE
Highest Lowest
&5 545

HKS HKS HKS

BT BT BT

September 9 H 384,000 2.85 2.84 1,092,799.98

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

According to the macroeconomy and market condition at that time, the
Directors considered that the then stock price failed to completely reflect the
value of the Company, therefore the purchase of the Company’s shares was
carried out.

REZE2015F12 A31HILFE » B
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HOSA International Limited S BB GR L 7 63



Report of the Directors

EEERE

Connected Transaction

On 7 November 2014, the Company as issuer had entered into a conditional
warrant subscription agreement (as amended subsequently on 10 November
2014 and 6 February 2015) (the “Warrant Subscription Agreement”) with
Keen Mate Limited (the “Investor”) as subscriber in relation to the issue of a
total of 82,729,300 warrants (the “Warrants”) at the warrant issue price of
HK$1.

The Warrants entitle the Investor to subscribe for in aggregate 82,729,300
warrant shares (the “Warrant Shares”) at the warrant subscription price
of HK$4.31 per Warrant Share (subject to adjustment) for a period
commencing on the date of issue of the Warrants and ending on the date
falling two years after the date of the issue of the Warrants. The Warrant
Subscription Price represents: (a) a premium of approximately 39.9% over
the closing price of HK$3.08 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
7 November 2014, being the date of entering into the Warrant Subscription
Agreement; and (b) a premium of approximately 38.9% over the average of
the closing prices of HK$3.10 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last five (5) trading days immediately prior to the date of Warrant
Subscription Agreement.

The Investor is an investment holding company. The entire issued share
capital of the Investor is beneficially and legally owned by Dr. Zhang
Jionglong (GRAMBEEE ).

Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited is a controlling shareholder of the
Company, being beneficially owned as to 49.85% by Mr. Shi Hongliu, and
26.23% by Mr. Shi Hongyan, both directors of the Company.

Given that the Investor has acquired approximately 9.99% of the issued
share capital of the Company from Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited
on the date of the Warrant Subscription Agreement, the Investor is deemed
to be connected with Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited by the Stock
Exchange. Accordingly, the issue of the Warrants and the subsequent
issue of the Warrant Shares contemplated under the Warrant Subscription
Agreement constitute connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, subject to, among other things, reporting,
announcement and the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2015, the Company and the Investor entered into a
termination agreement, pursuant to which the parties thereto mutually
agreed to terminate the Warrant Subscription Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcements of the

Company dated 7 November 2014, 10 November 2014, 6 February 2015
and 30 December 2015.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

Haosha Industry, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company, has
entered into certain transactions with Haosha Garments.

Connected person

Haosha Garments is a limited liability company established in the PRC on 24
October 1996, and is owned as to 75% by Mr. Shi Hongliu and 25% by Mr.
Shi Hongyan, respectively. Mr. Shi Hongliu is an executive Director and is
entitled to exercise more than 30% of the voting power at general meetings
of Haosha Garments. Accordingly, Haosha Garments is an associate of Mr.
Shi Hongliu under Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules and therefore a connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions

(a)

Procurement agreement with Haosha Garments

On 7 June 2011, Haosha Industry, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, entered into a procurement agreement
with Haosha Garments, whereby Haosha Garments agreed to supply
its fabric products to Haosha Industry from time to time for Haosha
Industry to manufacture Hosa branded indoor sportswear products.
The procurement agreement is for a term from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013 renewable for a further three years at the option of
Haosha Industry subject to compliance with applicable requirements
of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has the right to terminate the
procurement agreement at any time before expiration subject to
compliance with the Listing Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha Garments
after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered into a new
procurement agreement (“New Procurement Agreement”) with
Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013, whereby Haosha Industry
agreed to purchase from Haosha Garments, and Haosha Garments
agreed to sell to Haosha Industry, fabric products from time to time.
The New Procurement Agreement is for a term of three years, from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is renewable for another
three year at the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance
with applicable requirements of Listing Rules. The annual caps for
the transactions under the New Procurement Agreement for each
of the three years ending 31 December 2016 are RMB3,000,000,
RMB3,800,000 and RMB4,500,000.
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Haosha Garments has been a fabric products provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue procuring fabric
products from Haosha Garments in view of their long-term business
relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond to the
order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate manner
compared with other independent suppliers of similar products
available in the market, as well as the proximity between Haosha
Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the transportation
costs. The prices at which the Group procures the fabric products
from Haosha Garments are based on terms that are comparable to
those available from independent suppliers of similar products, on
arm’s length negotiation and on normal commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group procured fabric
products of RMB3.04 million from Haosha Garments to manufacture
Hosa branded indoor sportswear products and the amount of
procurement fees paid/payable to Haosha Garments was within the
approved annual cap of RMB3.8 million (excluding value added tax).

Processing Agreement with Haosha Garments

In light of the fact that Haosha Industry lacks the in-house facilities
for dyeing and printing its procured fabric products, Haosha Industry
entered into a processing agreement with Haosha Garments on 7
June 2011, pursuant to which Haosha Garments agreed to provide
dyeing and printing services to Haosha Industry from time to time
on commercial terms. The processing agreement is for a term from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2013 renewable for a further period
of three years at the option of Haosha Industry subject to compliance
with applicable requirements of the Listing Rules. Haosha Industry has
the right to terminate the processing agreement at any time before
expiration subject to compliance with the Listing Rules.

In order to continue the relevant transactions with Haosha
Garments after 31 December 2013, Haosha Industry entered into
a new processing agreement (“New Processing Agreement”) with
Haosha Garments on 19 December 2013, whereby Haosha Industry
agreed to purchase from Haosha Garments, and Haosha Garments
agreed to supply to Haosha Industry, dyeing and printing services
from time to time. The New Processing Agreement is for a term
of three years, from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016, and is
renewable for another three year at the option of Haosha Industry
subject to compliance with applicable requirements of Listing Rules.
The annual caps for the transactions under the New Processing
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016 are
RMB50,000,000, RMB57,600,000 and RMB62,400,000, as approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 8 May 2014.
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Report of the Directors

Further details of such transaction are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 19 December 2013 and 27 December 2013
and the circular of the Company dated 15 April 2014.

Haosha Garments has been the processing service provider of the
Group and the Group expects itself to continue using processing
services provided by Haosha Garments in view of their long-term
business relationship, which enables Haosha Garments to respond
to the order requests of the Group in a more prompt and accurate
manner compared with other independent suppliers of similar services
available in the market, as well as the proximity between Haosha
Garments and Haosha Industry, which helps reduce the transportation
costs. The prices at which Haosha Garments provides processing
services to the Group are based on terms that are comparable to
those offered by independent suppliers of similar services, on arm'’s
length negotiation and on normal commercial terms.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group incurred RMB49.18
million for the processing services provided by Haosha Garments and
the amount of processing fees paid/payable to Haosha Garments was
within the approved annual cap of RMB57.6 million (excluding value
added tax).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions between the Group and
Haosha Garments, and confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole.
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The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issued
their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
The auditors’ letter confirms that, in respect of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group.

C nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to
believe that the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the auditors’
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the above-mentioned
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as
set by the Company.

Significant related parties

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules in respect
of the above connected transaction and continuing connected transactions.
Save as disclosed, significant related party transactions which do not
constitute connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules in the year are disclosed in Note 26 of the financial
statements prepared under the International Financial Reporting Standards.

Contracts with Controlling Shareholders
No contract of significance had been entered into between the Company or

any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders during the year ended
31 December 2015.
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Report of the Directors

Non-Compete Undertakings

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company of his/its
compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the Company
under the Deed of Non-Competition (as defined in the Prospectus). The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance
and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition
have been complied with by the controlling shareholders.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business, apart from the
Group's business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to and including the date of this
annual report.

Management Contracts

No contacts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated applicable to the Company.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employees and are reviewed by the remuneration
committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted two share option schemes to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of these schemes are set
out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” above and note 20
to the financial statements.
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Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for eligible employees. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statements as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in China are
required to participate in defined contribution central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries of the Group
are required to contribute certain percentages of its payroll costs to the
central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits beyond the annual contributions described above.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for 15.6% (2014: 13.3%) and 48.9% (2014: 50.6%),
respectively, of the Group's total revenue from continuing operations.

During the year, aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers accounted for 13.6% (2014: 8.9%) and 36.1% (2014:
38.2%), respectively, of the Group'’s total purchases from suppliers.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Haosha Garments Co., Ltd.
(“Haosha Garments”) was one of the five largest suppliers of the Group.
Haosha Garments is owned as to 75% by Mr. Shi Hongliu and 25% by Mr.
Shi Hongyan, respectively, who are executive directors of the Company.
Apart from Haosha Garments, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2015, did a Director, his/her associate(s) or a Shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Director owns more than 5% of the Company's
share capital, have an interest in any other of the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors

Auditors

KPMG will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that every Director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, losses and damages which he/she may sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her
duty, or supposed duty, in his/her office, provided that the indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to him/her.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage
on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against Directors
arising out of corporate activities throughout the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has outstanding bank loan of
RMB129,739,000, which carried interest rate of 1.58%. The amount of
interest capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2015 was nil.

On behalf of the Board
Shi Hongliu
Charrman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M R B Am R

oG

To the shareholders of Hosa International Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Isiandls with himited hability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hosa International
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set
out on pages 74 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

72 2015 Annual Report FERE

HEDEIRERARRR
(REIEFHSTMA LA ERL A])

BRPIEEAVNENE74AE143EHEN ERE
RA([ERRRENBAG (HEIE%
B HaHTBHRE - HReER20159612
A3TBREHBERAR  BEZALFE
A BHERNEMGA R « Aot E
KLAMHELRER  UATESHHENE
REMKIEER

ESREOHMBRRARENER

EARNESAAEREER I ERES S
B st EBR A T R4 R B R B C 2 V)
BT RS BB RE - DA GBS
BROUEEMAR NRBEEHR AR
AT P B HOPORBER ] - DA RGBT
TR T R SR T B EA S
s -

BBV EE

BB ERRERMNFTHZSTAHMT
BRIELER - RAERAZBERRE - Rt
BASN - BT ERE TR MIEE b A & o TP
THARENAR - HHEFAEMA LB E K
ErREE-

HPCRBEEE ST AGRMNCER R
ERIDHEITER - BLEANBREFIBTER
RE - WRE MITERT - UAEEELES
HUBHRER B M A EHAERBRRL -



Independent Auditor’s Report
8 M R BAN R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of
the Group's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

8 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EfERREMGSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HZE2015F12A31HIEFE (LARBER)

2015 2014
Note RMB'000 RMEB 000
Mist AR¥FIT ARBTT
Revenue £ 32 3 1,178,001 1,216,546
Cost of sales THE KR (573,413) (576,273)
Gross profit EF 604,588 640,273
Other revenue EHABWA 4 61,830 73,142
Other net loss H b g518 4 (526) (2,675)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KRG AR AR (206,770) (133,494)
Administrative and other operating expenses 1T & H 48 & 5 = (119,228) (88,281)
Profit from operations rERE 339,894 488,965
Finance costs B IRk ZR 5(@a) (1,002) —
Profit before taxation BB A1 R 5 338,892 488,965
Income tax FriSHi 6 (71,617) (85,803)
Profit for the year attributable to equity 7~ Tz IR RIEML FEFE
shareholders of the Company 267,275 403,162
Other comprehensive income for FEHMGERE
the year
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to AJREREBEFH D IEEIBFH
profit or loss: IEH -
Exchange differences on translation of o oh B (9 b 35 SN B A B
financial statements of operations outside MBI EmEARMEN =8
the mainland China (2,433) 1,996
Total comprehensive income for the AATAEERRENFERE
year attributable to equity W4 58
shareholders of the Company 264,842 405,158
Earnings per share (RMB) BREFN (AR%T) 9
— Basic E =N 0.16 0.24
— Diluted —BE 0.16 0.24

The notes on pages 78 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 22(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB R AR R &

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B ZE2015F12A318 EFE (UAREIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMEB 000
KiaE AERHTTT ARMFr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 10 79,939 83,808
Lease prepayments ENHE 11 17,734 18,149
Intangible assets B EE 12 769 522
Deferred tax assets EIERL B & E 21(b) 3,966 3,422
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 102,408 105,901
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =g 14 259,079 169,096
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E bR 15 344,034 320,972
Pledged deposits [RAZE S 16 174,916 15,832
Fixed deposits held at banks with maturity — ZI|Hf B 4838 =@ A 19 R17E £
over three months VS Y 17(@a) 1,281,500 1,222,298
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 17(a) 21,000 37,439
Total current assets REBEEHAE 2,080,529 1,765,637
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMERNK 18 320,886 208,034
Bank loan HRITER 19 129,739 —
Current taxation BNHRF I8 21(a) 10,768 15,161
Total current liabilities FEEERAE 461,393 223,195
Net current assets REBEERE 1,619,136 1,542,442
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 1,721,544 1,648,343
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE R 21(b) 10,782 7,197
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBEE 10,782 7,197
Net assets EERE 1,710,762 1,641,146
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital N 22(c) 13,494 13,465
Reserves =] 22(d) 1,697,268 1,627,681
Total equity A 1,710,762 1,641,146

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 8 March 2016.

Shi Hongliu

Director

EE

The notes on pages 78 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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Shi Hongyan
TR FE
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B ERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HZE2015F12A31HIEFE (LARBER)

Capital Share-based
Share Share  redemption Capital ~ Statutory ~ Exchange Other  compensation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eanings Total
&% N aEE
i RitEE REG#E ERE EERE ERGG Efbff  NRERE REwE Eh
(note 22(c) ~ (note 22(d)fi)  (note22(a)(i)  (note 22(d)iif)  (note 22(d)il) ~(note 22(d)(v))  (note 22(d)iv))  (note 22(a)vi)
(M) (Retae)  (Weta)  (Wsk2aoi)  (Wsk2a)  (Wakae) (HEEae) (PRl
Note RMB000 RMB000 AMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RB000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000
Wit NREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETr AREFT  AREFR
Balance at 1 January 2014 ROUE1B1RNESR 13485 293,701 - 60 61,965 (8326) 91,132 6,676 937,363 1,396,056
Changes in equity for 2014: WIUEREEE:
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - - 403,162 403,162
Other comprehensive income A ke - - - - - 199 - - — 1996
Total comprehensive income GANEES - - - — — 199% - - 403,162 405,158
Appropriation to statutory reserves  EAEFEE 22(d)i) - - - - 5,500 - - - (5,500) -
Equity-settled share-based payments  MHESZELIRAZ 22(d)vi) - - - - - - - 1,161 - 1,161
Share issued on exercise of EERELCEIRR
share options 22(c)i) 6 1,045 - — — — - (342) — 709
Dividends approved in respectof  BUAEEH RS
current year 22(b) — (156,570) — — — — — - — (156,570)
Purchase of own shares BERHRH 22(c)i
— Par value paid -EfiEE (26) - - - - - - - - (26)
— Premium paid -BfEE - (5342) - - - - - - - (5342)
— Transer between reserves - REERER - (26) % - - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 ROUENENANES 13,465 132,808 26 60 67,465 (6,330) 91,132 7495 1,335,025 1,641,146
Balance at 1 January 2015 R015E1A1AMEE 13,465 132,808 26 60 67,465 (6,330) 91,132 7495 1,335,025 1,641,146
Changes in equity for 2015: WISFEERE
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - - - - 267,215 267,275
Other comprehensive income AeahE - - - - - (2433) - - - (2.443)
Total comprehensive income GAlRER - - - - - (2433) - - 267,215 268,482
Appropriation to statutory resenves  BAEE R 22(d)i) - - - - 2,107 - - - (2,107) -
Share isued on exercise of fitERiEz &R
share options 22(c)i 3 6,081 - - - - - (1,986) - 4127
Dividends approved in respect o~ BLAEEH EHIRE
current year 22(b) - (116,364) - - - - - - (82,091) (198,455)
Purchase of own shares BERSHG 20(c)i
— Par value paid -BfiEE B - - - - - - - - B
— Premium paid -BHEE - (895) - - - - - - - (895)
— Transfer between reserves - EERES - 6] 3 - - - — _ _ _
Balance at 31 December 2015 R2015512831 AR 13,494 21,627 29 60 69,572 (8,763) 91,132 5,509 1,518,102 1,710,762

The notes on pages 78 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B ZE2015F12A318 EFE (UAREIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB'000 RMEB 000
Mist AREFT ARETFT
Operating activities ReEE
Cash generated from operations KEMSHRE 17(b) 306,478 440,921
Income tax paid BFEHR (72,969) (72,063)
Net cash generated from RETEMBRESTFE
operating activities 233,509 368858
Investing activities REFH
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE  BEKEBERR
plant and equipment (6,210) (31,170)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BERTEENK (622) (256)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HEKEE
plant and equipment FTSFA - 14
Interest received EUERF B 40,095 22,519
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BEHFR (gm R (159,084) 1,852
Placement of time deposits with original FARZIEAEA
maturity over three months =8 Az EHFR (1,281,500) (1,222,298)
Maturity of time deposits with original REEARBB=EA 2 EH7F
maturity over three months REIERRE 1,222,298 723,950
Net cash used in investing activities rREZymAReFE (185,023) (505,389)
Financing activities RMEED
Proceed from bank loan RITERAEHRIEA 129,606 —
Proceeds from shares issued under RIREE IR 2B 1 TR (D
share option scheme FT1S5K38 22(c)(ii) 4,127 709
Payment for repurchase of shares A& A & BTk (898) (5,368)
Interest paid EASHLE (892) —
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ERARTERREORE
of the Company 22(b) (196,868) (156,570)
Net cash used in financing activities REITHMARSEE (64,925) (161,229)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R RIS EEBYR FHE (16,439) (297,760)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January A1A1ANBEERRSEEY 37,439 335,199
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31H®ERE K
31 December WEZEEY 17(a) 21,000 37,439

The notes on pages 78 to 143 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(
(

1

78

Br=E AN

BRAARESIR)

Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 2
September 2010. The shares of the Company have been listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 2011.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (conznuea)

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$"). These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB") as the functional currency of the Group’s
operating subsidiaries is RMB. These consolidated financial
statements presented in RMB have been rounded to the nearest
thousand.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(
(

1

80

Br=E AN

BRAARESIR)

Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting standards

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

o Amendments to IFRS 19, £mployee benefits. Detined
benerit plans: Employee contributions

o Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2070 — 2072 Ccle

o Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2077 — 2073 Grcle

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the group and other parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (contnueaq)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1()).
Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs (see note 1(1)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(
(

1

82

Br=E AN

BRAARESIR)

Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(e)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (conzinuead)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

° Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years after
the date of completion.

. Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
o Motor vehicles 2-4 years
. Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent software and are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimate useful lives. Software are amortised from the date they
are available for use over a period of three years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights paid to the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) governmental authorities.
Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(i)). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the respective periods
of the rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(h)

(0]

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets
(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BB EEEN  HUAREKEDITR)
1 Significant accounting policies (continuead) 1 EAREHBEE)
(i)  Impairment of assets (conzinued) (i) EEREE)
(i)  Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued) () BESREMENZHEE
(%)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is WIF AR EEE - BE
determined and recognised as follows: BRIBAT R EE &
%QJ\ :
For trade and other current receivables carried at TR I AT E Y
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as B 5 & H R
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount EREBRAREEE
and the present value of estimated future cash B AR T B B2 5T R 2R
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original B nEHEME
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest MR EFEE - W8
rate computed at initial recognition of these REEEE N BlI%
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. TREERERFE
This assessment is made collectively where these (B ERZEE
financial assets share similar risk characteristics, ERGTENERARN
such as similar past due status, and have not been K)BLIR - e /A
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash EAEEBEURRIE
flows for financial assets which are assessed for B planFE LA R
impairment collectively are based on historical loss &0 Rl K B AT A
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics RRME - BB
similar to the collective group. g—RET - 2/E
ENRRREMER
BEZEEEARR
PEER RSN E
ERBTEESR—
EFHERIE
If in a subsequent period the amount of an AREBERM - RE
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be BREFERLD - MA
linked objectively to an event occurring after the B D P] R b B A
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment HWRABEELEEE
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of MEMFBE - BIR
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s BELAEHERIERE
carrying amount exceeding that which would have B o FEE KB
been determined had no impairment loss been FEHEEREER
recognised in prior years. LB F R I R
RBEBRKHERLT
[RIEFEER SR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(i) Impairment of assets (conzinueq)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables (continuec)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;

J lease prepayments;

. intangible assets; and

o investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(
(

1
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Br=E AN

BRAARESIR)

Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(i)

Impairment of assets (conzinueq)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continuec)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets to
the cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(i) Impairment of assets (conzinueq)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (continuec)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, /nterim
tinancia/ reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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BRI  MAARYSIR)

Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

)

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised
as an expense.

(BR=EHEHI

BAANRESIR)

1 ERSHEEE)

o

(m)

(n)

(o)

HOSA International Limited J& A BB AR A &

FFRMER

SHEERRIR A R EERER
RHRATER o NIAHEREK 5
BEFIRBEHERARTE - WA
R R EELE 2 MEME
B EZRETAMNERENER -
ERERMNZERBRAAER
R o

EZREMBEAR

B REMENRTBRERAAE
BERER - BRRIZBHRATIRR -
BRIFRRIRMFEALTEKX - Hib
B0 T R AFIBR o

RERREEEY

RelReSEMEBRRITER
RFBRRAE  FRERTREM
MR T X RSN
FUENREFRERMERRE
REMSENRE - HEEEH
BB AR RAEBAEE SR ={E
HARZEIE)

EEEF

() FHESEFRREHRNE
tRar BIRs%

¥e o FEIEL - BHF
B - SUEHFCRIRETEIHR
A NFE B RN A&
BB RHARIRIS A FEER
FHE o W RS IR
BRIE - BEEEX - AZE
SRIRHBRETIRR -

BRe st AME R ARER RS
WIFERAIN - RIBPEA
B TR BRI ROE R A S &
2 AERFORINGT L &
BN ELREE IR R
RFX °

89



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEIEAI - TAAREDIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continuead) 1 EAREHBEE)

(o) Employee benefits (continued) (o) REERAGE)
(i)  Share-based payments (i) HRGHEEHIIN
ai7g BRSNS
The fair value of share options granted to employees %gﬁj‘_?ég%iAﬁ%
?s recogpised as employee cost with'a correspondiqg %ﬁéqjg;guﬂﬁ{éﬁgzgmﬁ
increase in the share-based compensation reserve within (EEEEVERER I - DB
equity. The fair value is measured at the grant date using BiEEHHBRE AR 1B
the binomial lattice model, taking into accounts the terms NEFERAETE - Wit AR
and conditions upon which the options were granted. P RS B AR SR R R o i
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions Eﬁm%ﬂ%@fﬁiﬁuif
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, E%HXEE’?” ;E%g'ﬁ%i%ﬂ*
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over g ng;ﬁﬁfqﬁggg
the vesting period, taking into account the probability 2 ‘X\,/é\ ;;ﬁ A\,{EFE; =
that the options will vest. %E@%g@uﬁﬁ”ﬂg%%m
During the vesting period, the number of share options NGB EEANTERE TR
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting B BB AR AR B B A TR S -
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised %WME@E*?EE@E’U%‘ET@@
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for 1%@%%@5@% ) Ejgf@fﬂﬂﬁ
the year of the review, unless the original employee f?gging%é%%éé
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a Fgéﬂ\ﬁ\v/[ﬁg#ﬁ%ﬁéfﬁi
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On é%fﬁﬁ&*}%é& . )’5/\%%
ve;ting date, the amount recognised as an expense is E/g;@ , ﬁE; %%iﬁ'\]é%ﬁ?ﬁ
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest FEE . PURMREE O
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) BHERESE (XRER
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving EEANIERREFARE) - MW
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the REXRAEES AN BRI
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in ﬁf\%ﬁ%’gﬁ'ﬁ%%ﬂ%"?ﬁ%ﬁ_%
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised iﬁfug\ﬁ‘ﬂ??\\ ° ﬁ%ag%ﬁ
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or i%%fﬁgﬁ%ﬁ}mé%%”%
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained ?:HE%E%)\\/E%QEEEEEE)%E%
. P=R:iNgE /B RIX ) BXR
profits). B (R B AR
ZREBFE) BRI
(p) Income tax (p) FREH

90

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(p)

Income tax (continuea)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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BRAARESIR)

Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(p)

Income tax (continuea)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

° in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

o in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(a)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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BRAARESIR)

Significant accounting policies (conzinueq)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continuea)
(iii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside the mainland China are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

1 Significant accounting policies (conznueq)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(¢) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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Significant accounting policies (conznueq)
(u) Related parties (conzinuea)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(b)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(c)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(d)  One entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(@) A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies (conznueq)
(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group's
various lines of business.

Accounting judgement and estimates

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and assumptions are
factors to be considered when reviewing the financial statements.
The principal accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The Group
believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements.

(@) Impairments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable, the asset may be considered “impaired”,
and an impairment loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The
carrying amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

(BRRBEAI HAAREI|IR)
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Accounting judgement and estimates (conznueaq)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairments (continueq)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, sales revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of sales volume,
sales revenue and amount of operating costs.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions and
the historical experience of selling products with similar nature.
Any change in the assumptions would increase or decrease the
amount of inventories write-down or the related reversals of
write-down made in prior years and affect the Group’s net assets
value. The Group reassesses these estimates at the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and
other receivables by assessing the recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. Allowances are applied to trade
and other receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period in which
such estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Accounting judgement and estimates (conznued)
(d) Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual value. Intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised on straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation and amortisation expenses to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group'’s historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
and amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Revenue and segment reporting

The principal activities of the Group are design, manufacture and
wholesale of swimwear, fitness wear and sports underwear.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold less returns,
discounts and value added tax.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business
segments. The primary format, business segments, is based on
the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. No
geographical segment analysis is presented as substantially all assets,
liabilities, revenue and gross profit of the Group are attributable to the
operation in the PRC.

In 2015, the Group has four separate segments within the continuing
operations as follows:

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under the
brand name of “Hosa” (“Swimwear-Hosa");

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of swimwear under the
brand name of “Water Cube” (“Swimwear-Water Cube”);

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of fitness wear under the

brand name of “Hosa"” (“Fitness wear-Hosa"); and

- Design, manufacture and wholesale of sports underwear under
the brand name of “Hosa” (“Sports underwear-Hosa").
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Bt HE R A& (E)
d) FERE

WE - WE KRR R bE
MHpEERABRENE A
RERAFTE - BREER R
MELEENGF T RFERRE
REEEH - ARBTHENE
ENME AT RFEY - RBERE
R EHATHOTES R L
HAX - AATRFEHDREAKE
RESBRUEENKER  YEE
TEHI R IR S - WEB
EAFTHRERRE - RRBMH
BT E R EFA S AR ENR

% o

ERERDAPRE

AEBNEREBRKED - 25 IR
FEBA XM ~ FERILE -

BEBEDHEESNOHEMELEE
& TINREER -

DEER IR AREEB D LS -

RN (EBD ) IIREASEE @&
MESERIRIRIEE D - ARARERE R KA
DEE  BfE - EXBEMENGRAR

¢I%¥WM © UL 2 51 [
DT e

20154 » REFRFERLSELK NG
BB DE - HHMT -

- DED ImETKESNRE - &£
ERAE(KES—ED])

- KRG ImETREB MR
HENME(ES—KLT])

- RIS TREBHNSD
EF&M%H&%%%
») i

- EY Mg T ES AR
EERME(CEBAXR—ED]) -

HOSA International Limited &2 BB AR A 7 99



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(
(

100

Br=E AN

BRAARESIR)

Revenue and segment reporting (continueq)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is set out below:

3 EXERIBHMEE)

MASBE RS RITHEEEREUANE
Z2015F N2014F 12 BA31BIEFED
e &R L E D RRAMEBEAREEEA

By B ERIE I T

Sports
Swimwear Swimwear  Fitnesswear  underwear
-Hosa -Water Cube - Hosa - Hosa
KE® KE BEHm EBAK Total
& -KIAF - % -
RIB000 RIB000 RIMB000 RIMBO00 RIMBO00
AREFT  ANREFT  ARETFT  AREFT  AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE2015F12831RLEE
Revenue B5H 395,785 151,994 437,076 193,146 1,178,001
Cost of sales HEKA (179.311) (88,493) (187,372) (118,237) (573,413)
Gross profit A 216,474 63,501 249,704 74,909 604,588
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZ2014F128318LEE
Revenue BEH 374,387 141,101 392,295 308,763 1,216,546
Cost of sales HERR (156,531) (85,856) (154,509) (179,377) (576,273)
Gross profit A 217,856 55,245 237,786 129,386 640,273

The Group's revenue by geographical locations is determined by the
destination where the goods are delivered.

REBLMIPA B E D82 ERIAE
m A f B R HEE

Year ended 31 December

BZENRANMBLFEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Domestic A 1,117,083 1,183,115
Overseas &b 60,918 33,431
1,178,001 1,216,546

The Group has one customer (2014: three customers) with whom
transactions has exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The amount of sales to the customer
amounted to approximately RMB183,217,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB439,616,000).
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Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4  Other revenue and other net loss

(BRRBEAI HAAREI|IR)

HAWA R E b5 E TR

Year ended 31 December

BZNRAMMBLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 FME 000
AR¥FT AREFT
Other revenue Hinlr A
Interest income — financial institutions BN — & ghikhs 36,633 43,560
Government grants TR T#E AL 24,418 29,259
Others Hih 779 323
61,830 73,142
Other net loss HiEsiaF5E
Exchange loss iE &R (519) (2,428)
Gain on disposal of property, HEE - BRE REED
plant and equipment e - 10
Others Eith (7) (257)
(526) (2,675)

Government grants of the Group were unconditional and were
therefore recognised as income when received.

AR B BUT R A BRI - E IR
R HERR UL
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PR R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(RS HEIERI - HUARES|R)
5  Profit before taxation 5 BREEATFIE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB ATFNE DB, (GEA) AT EIE
BEH
Year ended 31 December
BZNRANMBLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 FME 000
AR¥FT AREFT
(a) Finance costs: (a) TSRS :
Interest on bank loan IRITIEFRF B 1,002 -
(b) Staff costs: (b) EIRA :
Contributions to defined contribution RER-FERIRET B
retirement plans (7ote 23) (H7#23) 1,795 1,675
Equity-settled share-based payment AR S5 E LA
expenses (note 20) SR (HEE20) - 1,161
Salaries, wages and other benefits H4e - TEREMET 98,112 97,624
99,907 100,460
(c) Other items: (c) Hfb1EHE :
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ERENESH#E
and lease prepayments 790 648
Auditors’ remuneration FE-TETE & 2,550 2,350
Depreciation e 9,617 9,391
Operating lease charges in respect BEMENCERETH
of properties 6,666 6,906
Research and development costs RS (HT22(3))
(note (1)) 73,443 43,393
Cost of inventories (7oze (i) TFERA(HT 7)) 573,413 576,273
Notes: HieE -
(i) Research and development costs for the year ended 31 December 2015 (i) HZE2015F12 A31 B IEFE K

include staff costs of employees in the design, research and development
department of RMB13,225,000 (2014: RMB13,574,000), which are also
included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 5(b).

(i) Cost of inventories for the year ended 31 December 2015 includes
RMB57,533,000 (2014: RMB54,590,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation expenses, which amount is included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above in notes 5(b) and (c) for each of these
types of expenses.
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Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represents:

6 AHEEREMESKRERF

BV RSB

() EHEZEREMGREKERTH

BIRSE ¢

Year ended 31 December

BHZNRAMMBLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 FME 000
AREFT ARBTFT
Current tax - PRC income tax BNEARLIE — R E TSR
Provision for the year FEEE 49,576 78,514
PRC dividend withholding tax i/ H IR S TR 19,000 -
Deferred tax ELERE
Reversal and origination of temporary &[0 B[4 Z= 28
differences (note 27(6)) (K1z£21()) (544) 92
Provision of dividends withholding tax A& ST B4 3,585 7,197
71,617 85,803

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable tax rates:

(b) BEMXEZRBEBABRERFENS

TR AR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLFE
2015 2014
RMB’'000 RME 000
ARMTFT ARET T
Profit before taxation BB A 338,892 488,965
Notional tax on profit before taxation,  ZiE AR E G AE R
calculated at the statutory tax ETE R E RBRB AT
rates applicable to the respective FEaE=IED)
tax jurisdictions (7 85,550 122,777
Tax effect of PRC preferential HEE BRI EH
tax treatments (77 A% R 2 (i) (38,337) (44,811)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ A] 07 B sz A 75 8 22 1,819 640
Withholding tax on profit retained R BT B A RMR B AR
by PRC subsidiaries (77 TEFIW i) 22,585 7,197
Actual tax expense EBRBIER 71,617 85,803
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BR=BHEBIN

B ARES|R)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(continueq)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates: (continuead)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group did
not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) Law that took
effect on 1 January 2008, the statutory income tax rate of the Group’s
subsidiaries in mainland China Haosha Industry (Fujian) Co., Ltd.
("Haosha Industry”) and Haosha Industry (Datian) Co., Ltd. (“Haosha
Industry (Datian)”) is 25%.

In accordance with the CIT Law, its implementation rules and the
relevant regulations, Haosha Industry was granted the High and New
Technology Enterprise Status in 2013 for a valid period of 3 years
from 2013 to 2015 which entitles Haosha Industry to a reduced
income tax rate at 15% during the valid periods under the CIT Law
and its relevant regulations.
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Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
(continueq)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates: (continuead)

(iii)

(iv)

According to PRC CIT Law and its implementation rules, dividends
receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises which
are earned since 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding tax at a
rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements. Under
the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangement, a qualified Hong Kong
tax resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for
dividend income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is
the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests
of the PRC Company. As at the date of the annual report, the Group
has not yet obtained the certificates of Hong Kong tax residents from
the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong. Therefore, the Group
adjusted the withholding tax rate from 5% to 10%.

The Directors of the Group have determined that in determining
the amounts of dividends to be distributed from PRC subsidiaries
to the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary in future, the amounts
of dividends declared or to be declared by the Company would be
considered. On 4 March 2016, the Board of Directors of Haosha
Industry declared of RMB190,000,000 and resolved the estimated
dividends to be distributed will not be greater than RMB107,820,000
in the foreseeable future.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the provision for
withholding tax on profit from PRC subsidiary amounted to
RMB22,585,000, including provision of current PRC dividends
withholding tax amounting RMB19,000,000 generated from
declared dividends and additional deferred tax provision of dividends
withholding tax amounting RMB3,585,000 as a consequence of the
change of withholding tax rate from 5% to 10%.

PRC dividend withholding tax represents tax charged by the PRC tax
authority on dividends distributed by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
during the year.

EOEERAEMGRSRERT
KPS B (&

(b) BEMXEZRFABRERFENS
SRR ¢ (&

(iii)

(iv)

BIEPECEMEBEREEK
GOl FEPRECEEREFEM
HPEWAR B ZBIZB2008F1 A1H
57 46 BRE A 1B 89 10% B R 454
TEIR - BRIFER B IEO LB
WERBIBHIN o BEoh - BARPE
BEEEHBRY  W—BE%&
BEAREERATEARNE
=EAAN]  WHEFA25%A £
feiE - ZEBEREERATE
EARIRBUABIZBIRS %I EH
MBI - RAFHRA - AEEH
MARBEBRERESE BRI
BERER - FAlt - AEEBRKS
FEMR AR5 %FAEE10% °

AEBEERIERTEARRM A ER
A B AR S EEE SR
BB R R RS 58 - AR
RAIEEEMEES S RFIES
—[FZE - R201653 A48 » &
DEENERTSO S ERERF
AR¥190,000,0007T * FIEHRE
R R REE D BT iR
A R 107,820,000 7T K 78 H7 Bk
e

REZE2015F12A31HILFE
M PREMRBARFENRKRETE
MBRHERBLBEAARE
22,585,0007t  EHBEEES
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(
(BB AEIEEI - FAARED|R)

7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the EEHMIREESE A TEHIE383(1)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BRARI(FEZESNZER)RHIE2
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as HAOEHIN TR -
follows:
Year ended 31 December 2015 HZ2015F12831BLEE
Salaries,  Contributions
allowancesand  toretirement  Share-based  Discretionary
Fee benefitsinkind benefit scheme payments bonuses Total
e 2H BRER D]
ne RENEAN I BENAR B E )
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL  ARETL  ARETT  AREFT AREFT AREFR
Executive Directors #7ES
Mr. Shi Hongliu AT - 961 4 - - 965
Mr. Shi Hongyan i i - 841 4 - - 845
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong /// B hEELY) - 250 2 - - 252
M. Zhao Yan 7/ flcya) - 578 5 - - 603
Mr. Shi Zhixiong /77 L ) - 50 - - - 50
Sub-total gt - 2,680 35 - - 2,115
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHGES
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan BEFLT - 250 - - - 250
Mr. He Wenyi /37 3 R - 15 - - - 15
Mr. Wang Yao /) TREEM - 165 - - - 165
Mr. Yao Ge frs - 180 - - - 180
Sub-total 1Nef - 610 - - - 610
Tota @it - 3,290 3% - - 3325
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREZBHERAN BUARKETITR)
Directors’ emoluments (conzinuead) 7 EEHFME
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZE2014F1283181LEE
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit  Share-based  Discretionary
Fee inkind scheme payments bonuses Total
#ie 2% AR B
ne  RENER HEMS  ERNAR [N @it
B0 B0 RB 00 B0 B0 B0
AREFT  AREfr  AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFR
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Shi Hongliu Sy - 961 3 - - 94
Mr. Shi Hongyan i i - 841 3 - - 844
Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong SOlERE - 601 3 163 - 767
Mr. Zhao Yan il cha - 630 28 233 - 891
Sub-total It - 3,033 37 3% - 3466
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHAES
Ms. Ko Yuk Lan BERRT - 25 - - - 250
Mr. Sun Ruizhe A rigid - - - - - -
Mr. Wang Yao HRkE - 116 - - - 116
Mr. Yao Ge iyt - 180 - - - 180
Sub-total NGt - 546 - - - 546
Total @ - 3579 37 3% - 4012
Notes: Vo2
(i) Mr. Zeng Shaoxiong was ceased to be an executive director on 26 May 2015. (i) DI R 201545 A26 H BT T
BF-
(ii) Mr. Zhao Yan was ceased to be an executive director on 1 December 2015. (i) HIBEEN2015FE12 B 1A B FHRITE

(iii) Mr. Shi Zhixiong and Mr. He Wenyi were appointed as executive director and
independent non-executive director respectively on 1 December 2015.

(iv) Mr. Wang Yao was ceased to be an independent non-executive director on 1

December 2015.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, no amount was
paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals set out in note 8 as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

(iii)

(iv)

%o

MRS e A AR O3 S AR 2015512 7
THD R EZERITEERIBLIENITE

%o

THEEAR2015F12 A1 ABHEELIE

HITES -

HE20144F %2015 12 A31 H L4
[E o AEEBES R ENESRW T

8H I A%

=iy

BX (3 57

B A AR RR0E

1 753 i B 7 52 181 = i B8 A< £2 [ e 1) 2R )
& HIERRERE -
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(
(BB AEIEEI - FAARED|R)

8 Individual with highest emoluments 8 EeFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2014: four) REZBIMALR - =4 §301f(¢ :
are directors whose remuneration are disclosed in note 7. Emoluments E% IRES f&*ifg‘]%ﬁ_@” A\ W?ﬂ?j%
in respect of the remaining two individuals (2014: one) are as follows: ﬁ;ﬂ%jﬁﬁ% (2014% : =) AL HORF
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RME 000
ARMTFT AEEFT
Salaries and other emoluments e K E A B 1,059 943
Share-based payments AR AD BEER R - 37
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRET BRI 30 27
1,089 1,007
The emoluments of the two individuals (2014: one) with the highest LR (2014F « —F)&EFMAL
emoluments are within the following bands: B TSI E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEFE
2015 2014
Number Number
of individuals of individuals
AE A&
HK$500,001 to 1,000,000 500,001% 1,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
9 Earnings per share 9 BREFR
(a) Basic earnings per share () BREXZEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit BEARRBFIIBERAATE
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of BRETBREENFBEAREK
RMB267,275,000 (2014: RMB403,162,000) and the weighted 267,275,0007T (20144F : ARME
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year of 403,162,0007T) R F A B BE{TE
1,657,413,000 (2014: 1,655,327,000). B INAE 15 801,657,413,0000%
(20144 : 1,655,327,000 % ) &F
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

Earnings per share (conzinuea)

(a)

(b)

9 BREFGE)

Basic earnings per share (conznued) (a) BREXBAE)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT INRE T E
2015 2014
‘000 000
Fi FhE
Ordinary shares at 1 January R1A1TER LR 1,655,327 1,657,730
Effect of shares repurchased BRIk mO M2 (117) (2,465)
Effect of share options exercised ITIERBIR RN E 2,203 62
Weighted average number of K12 A31 B89 E @A N
ordinary shares at 31 December S 1,657,413 1,655,327
Diluted earnings per share (b) SREBFERN

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB267,275,000 (2014: RMB403,162,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,665,701,000 shares (2014: 1,663,451,000), calculated as
follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

ERBEERANDBEARQR YL
BRESBNEAEGRINBARRE
267,275,00070(2014%F + AR#E
403,162,0007T ) & & 38 B% hn i
¥#01,665,701,0000% (20144 -
1,663,451,0000%) 5t & :

B8 (E#E)

2015 2014
‘000 000
Fie FR
Weighted average number of ordinary %12 8318 &% @M% intE
shares at 31 December FEH B 1,657,413 1,655,327
Effect of deemed issue of shares IRBEAR THEARE LT
under the Company's share option HEREETROHOFE
scheme for nil consideration (H1:#20)
(note 20) 8,288 8,124
Weighted average number of ordinary #1231 H &3 38 & N
shares (diluted) at 31 December SEHE(EE) 1,665,701 1,663,451
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(
(BB AEIEEI - FAARED|R)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 ¥ - BERRE
Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixturesand  Leasehold Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement in progress Total

87 HBERES RE  GHRKE ARNRKE  HRIE it
RUBO00  RMBODO  AMBOD  RMBOD  RMBORD  AMBORO  AMBON)

NEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETL  ARETR

Cost AA:

1 January 2014 R014E1A18 29,330 28,165 6,534 6,183 - 15,265 85,471
Additions RE - 3992 1,960 2,023 6,765 19,337 34,077
Transfer from construction in progress rRIRER - - - - 1997 (1997) -
Disposals MEZE - - (78) - - - (78)
At 31 December 2014 20148128318 29,330 32,157 8,416 8,206 8,762 32,605 119,476
1 January 2015 201581718 29,330 32,157 8,416 8,206 8,762 32,605 119,476
Additions AE - 3153 3 610 - 1982 5,748
Transfer from construction in progress TRIREY - - - - 205 (205) -
At 31 December 2015 20158128314 29,330 35310 8419 8,816 8,967 34,382 125,224
Accumulated depreciation ZiiNE:

1 January 2014 R201481718 5,061 13,074 5073 3143 - - 26,351
Charge for the year FENE 1,694 2,681 ni 1,361 2,938 - 9,391
Written back on disposals HEBED - - (74) - - - (74)
At 31 December 2014 20148124317 6,755 15,755 5716 4,504 2,938 - 35,668
1 January 2015 201581718 6,755 15,755 5716 4,504 2,938 - 35,668
Charge for the year FENE 1,694 2803 832 1,508 2,780 - 9,617
At 31 December 2015 20158124314 8,449 18,558 6,548 6,012 5718 - 45,285
Net ook value; BEFE:

At 31 December 2015 20158128311 20,881 16,752 181 2,804 3,249 34,382 79,939
At 31 December 2014 20148128318 22575 16,402 2,700 3,702 5824 32,605 83,808
All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group are located in REBFREYE  BEREREHLNH
the PRC. Buildings are situated on leasehold land with lease term of o BFAZENPEMAE T M - M
50 years in the PRC. EHR50F -
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Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

11 FEAHE:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RME 000
AR¥FT ARET T
Cost: AR -
At 1 January w1A18 19,304 19,304
Additions NE - -
At 31 December ®12A31H 19,304 19,304
Accumulated amortisation: ST -
At 1 January ®W1A1H 1,155 740
Charge for the year FEEH 415 415
At 31 December W12A31H 1,570 1,155
Net book value: BREFRE
At 31 December M12A31H 17,734 18,149
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s interests in leasehold land R2015F 12 A31H - AEEEF

are held on medium-term leases of 50 years in the PRC. As at 31
December 2015, the Group was in the process of obtaining the land
use right certificate in respect of a parcel of leasehold land in the PRC
with net book value of RMB6,897,000 (2014: RMB7,041,000).

HELHNESATBEERSE A
Hi504F o 2015F 12 A31H » &A%
B35 E— 8 AL A B A TH & £ SR EN
B ERAES  EER@mFEBA
K #6,897,000 7T (2014 : AR ¥
7,041,0007C) °
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12

112

Intangible assets 12 BREE
Software
B4
RME 000
ARBEFT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2014 201461 H18 1,018
Additions NE 256
At 31 December 2014 M2014%12H31H 1,274
At 1 January 2015 201551 H18 1,274
Additions NE 622
At 31 December 2015 12015612 A31H 1,896
Accumulated amortisation: ExHissy -
At 1 January 2014 201491 A1H 519
Charge for the year TR 233
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12831H 752
At 1 January 2015 7K2015F1H1H 752
Charge for the year FEEH 375
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 1,127
Net book value: BRENFEE
At 31 December 2015 72015912 831H 769
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12831H 522

The amortisation charge for the year is included in administrative and
other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.
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13 Investments in subsidiaries 13 RAHREBATMNKRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below: TICETIT B A Bl
Place of Particular of Proportion of
incorporation issued and ownership
and business paid up capital interest held by
Name of company FMRLR ERTR BENAE Principal activities
NAER fd- ik HRERFE EERLA TERE

the Company a subsidiary

ARE  -EWELR

Hosa Investment Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% - Investment holding
("Hosa Investment") N B )

D REERARAR ABARER/ 1ERL 100% - RERKR
(IEDERE]) B

Hosa Health Investment Holdings Limited BVI Us§10 100% - Investment holding
("Hosa Health Investment”) N B )

EYRRREERERAANEDERRE]) ERERES 10X 100% - RERK

Hosa Group Investment Limited BVI Us$1 100% - Investment holding
("Hosa Group Investment (BVI)") N )

/%//ﬁl% ERRAADESRERE RRERES 1% 100% - REBK
(%E,\Eﬁ'ﬁ%ﬂ)

Hosa Sports Health Investment Holdings Limited BVI Us$1 100% - Investment holding
("Hosa Sports Health Investment”) i N )

EDEBRFREBRERLAEDEDRRRE]) KBERES %7 100% - RERKR

Hosa Life and Health Management Limited Hong Kong HK$10 - 100% Dormant
( Hosa Life and Health Management )

EHERRRERERAR(E M EniEER]) EE 10871 - 100% EZEXH

Hosa Group Holdmgs Limited ("Hosa Group”) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding

/D//?KI} HXEE (’—/D//KID é/% 10,000\;%73 - 100% &Lﬁﬂﬂﬁ

Hosa Group Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Dormant
("Hosa Group Investment (HK)")

EVEBRERRAR(DELERRE(FE))) B (i - 100% EE£H

Hosa Sports Health Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Dormant
("Hosa Sports Health Management”) ) )

EDEDRFERERAT(EVEDRRER]) BB 187 - 100% EEEH

Haosha (Shenzhen)lnvgstment and Consulting Limited*  PRC RMB‘NiI B - 100% Dormant
(B (RINRE-ABR AT e AEBET ERER

Haosha Industry* PRC RMB121,500,000 - 100%  Design, manufacture and sales

of swimwear, fitness wear,
sports underwear and swim
and indoor sports accessories

EDEL(RR)ERAR el ARE - 100% et BERBEKED  E5
121,500,0007C Bl - BEARURKER
ERER M
Haosha Industry (Datian)* PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sales of

swimwear, fitness wear,
sports underwear and swim
and indoor sports accessories

EDEE(KE)BRAF HE ARE - 100% ZERHEKES BHBHM-
20,000,0007 g%ﬂ{@w&m&ﬁ Mg
L
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(

(BR

13

14

114

br S HIEREIN  HUARESR)
Investments in subsidiaries conzined 13 RMIELARMNKRE(E)
Hosa Group Investment (BVI) and Hosa Sports Health Invstment are 5%7)%&%3(5@%%&?;%%)&5%7)@
limited companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and they iﬁfkﬁ&é?%ﬁ?i%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂii
are both subsidiaries of the Company which are newly set up on 2 HMERR 1)325‘51’]7%213 75@2015&
October 2015. 10A2H %ﬁﬁﬁumﬁﬁﬁ'
Hosa Group Investment (HK) and Hosa Sports Health Management EDEBIRE (BB) REDE §ﬂ1¥,< RE
Limited are limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong and are BAEEBIMKIMNERAR - BS
subsidiaries of Hosa Group Investment (BVI) and Hosa Sports Health E'JF%/.:.//wl&ﬁ@ﬁ%zﬁ/‘?\ﬁ%)&m
Investment respectively, which are both newly set up on 10 November DB R AT 201511 A10H
2015. B SZEY M A A
Haosha (Shenzhen) Investment and Consulting Limited is a limited ED CRYD A Z R AR AR RIETE
company incorporated in the PRC and is the subsidiary of Haosha At AR AT - H?%/m/)‘%‘%lﬁ’t\
Group which is newly set up on 29 January 2015. The registered 201551 A29 B HAL KM A 7] = )
capital of Haosha (Shenzhen) Investment and Consulting Limited DORINLEZBERA Tﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ§$
is RMB10,000,000 which was yet contributed by the Group at 31 A AR #10,000,0007T - A5 B R
December 2015. There is no particular requirement on the timing of 20156F 12 AT AIREE X ERE
the capital contribution. W ERE ©
* The English translation of the companies' names is for reference only. The * ZENTNEBHENEXHEEHRS2E - %
official names of the companies are in Chinese. FZFRAFMERNBEAF -
Inventories 14 =FE&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) EHUBERARNEFEANTIE
position comprise: BAEE :
At 31 December
M12H831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
AREFT AREFT
Raw materials A 106,555 72,580
Work in progress EES 8,206 6,435
Finished goods [rdir 144,318 90,081
259,079 169,096

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

(b) HRAMIAUFABBNFES
BT

Year ended 31 December

BZNRANMBLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 FME 000
AR¥FIT AR FT
Carrying amount of inventories sold 2 &EFSEHEE 572,532 576,273
Write down for inventories FERE 881 -
573,413 576,273
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(Br = BRI HUARETR)

15 Trade and other receivables 15 ESRHEMERR
At 31 December
R12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
ARETFT AREFT
Trade receivables EE1UNEN 248,486 269,222
Deposits and prepayments b6 S AN 45,524 22,938
Other receivables E A IR 50,024 28,812
344,034 320,972
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered Fr B 8 5 P& Wk f2 HoAth e Y sk 78
within one year. B —FRKE o
The Group accepts bank and commercial acceptance bills for REBEBEWNURITREFERLE
settlement of trade receivables. As at 31 December 2015, outstanding B NESEWER - 12015512
commercial acceptance bills in the amount of RMB267,920,000 (2014: A3TEMEUREEALERAR
RMB556,340,000) have been discounted to the banks. As these bills #267,920,0007T (20144 : AR
have been discounted without recourse, the Group has derecognised #556,340,0007T ) 5 E & B AR
these outstanding bills as receivables as at 31 December 2015. R T IRITHRI AR -

AR EA N R IR R FE
BREF] - Bl - ANEBER2015
F12A31BRIEFERZEAREIE
S EIRERIEUGR -
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BRAARESIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (conznuveq)

116

(i)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
doubtful debts, is as follows:

15 BESZREMEBURE

@

RRER DA

R B - IR BB E A N
B REREHE SRR (EE R
B 5 R E i BB ) BRI
T

At 31 December

M12H831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 FMEB 000
ARBFT AR BFr
Within 1 month MEAAR 56,657 90,780
More than 1 month but within 3 months ME A LA E1E3E A A 114,849 119,153
More than 3 months but within 6 months 31E A LA E1B6E AR 75,139 49,727
More than 6 months but within 1 year 6fE A EBE1FER 1,622 9,562
More than 1 year 150 E 219 -
248,486 269,222

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
24(a).

As at 31 December 2015, current balance included in trade
receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) amounted to
RMB246,645,000 (2014: RMB259,660,000). Amount past due
was RMB 1,841,000 (2014: RMB9,562,000). Receivables that
were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

2015 Annual Report £ E#R
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Mf5E24(a) -

MR2015F 128310 » B#FEAEHZ
SR (Fk RERE) D
Bi o B A R 246,645,000 7T
(2014 4F : A R ¥ 259,660,000
L) o mHeEBAARKE
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 EZREMEWRGE)

(ii) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (i) EZEWARERERZERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded BEAE BB EWERR
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied BEEXEAHEERIR - 8K
that the recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the E B Z U el A e T 2 A
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly YERGR - FELIBER T » RER K
(see note 1(i)(i)). HERE SRS (R KT

1030)))
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group did not REZE2015F12 A31AEFER
record any impairment losses in respect of trade receivables EEWESSEHE SR ER
(2014: Nil). EUREEK(20145F : &) o
16 Pledged deposits 16 EEHAEN

At 31 December

®12831H
2015 2014
RMB’000 KME 000

AREFT ARETIT

Amount pledged as security for ERRITERER 2 HIE
bank loan (hote 79) (H17£19) 132,000 -
Amount pledged as security for ERENZERE R 2 I8
bills payable (7ote 78) (B15£18) 42,916 15,832
174,916 15,832
The pledged deposits are expected to be released upon the settlement EERF IR EERRBERITER L
of the relevant bank loan and bills payable within 12 months. FEN IR 218 A AR -
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17 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits 17 BERRELEEYRBITER
held at banks X
(a) Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits held at () HERBESEEYERNBTEE

banks comprise:

WEMFREUTEB AN

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTFT ARETT

Fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over R ERE A = 18 A M IRTT

three months TE TR
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated ReftRenER I RE
cash flow statement MR EEY

1,281,500 1,222,298
21,000 37,439
1,302,500 1,259,737

Cash and cash equivalent represents cash at bank and on hand
as at the end of the reporting period.
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17 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits
held at banks (continueq)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated
from operations:

17 RERBREEEYRRITESR

FR(E)

(b) MRBAFBELERBSRENY

BR :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RME 000
AREFT ARETFT
Profit before taxation BR B AT I A 338,892 488,965
Adjustments for: BB S IEEH R
— Depreciation —E 9,617 9,391
- Amortisation of intangible assets —BEEEK
and lease prepayments AN S EE 790 648
— Gain on disposal of property, plant —HEWE - ENM
and equipment BELrE - (10)
— Finance costs SR ID N 1,002 -
— Interest income-financial —F B A — 2 BikiE
institutions (36,633) (43,560)
— Equity-settled share-based — AR AEE A
payments {10 A - 1,161
— Foreign exchange loss —EREE 133 -
— Written back of impairment loss — B S RBFRE
for trade receivables i - (615)
313,801 455,980
Changes in working capital EEELEE
Increase in inventories FEE (89,983) (17,687)
Increase in trade B 5 K H R AN
and other receivables (26,524) (34,014)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R B FE A 3RS A0 109,184 36,642
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 306,478 440,921
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18 Trade and other payables 18 ESRHEMENR
At 31 December
R12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
ARETFT AREFT
Trade payables B S EMNNR 97,427 83,516
Bills payable JENRIE 118,862 48,223
Receipts in advance TEUR 18,463 9,985
Other payables and accruals Hiv e ket E A 86,134 66,310
320,886 208,034
Bills payable as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were secured by R2015F 2014512 A31 B ERNZE
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 16. B LA BRI T A IR TR B RO MY
160
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FTEE 5 Rk EMENFIEAR —F R
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. N ERBBASTIRERER -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RBEER - BREBEZZEBHNESER
creditors and bills payable (which are included in trade and other ERRENSERGIAZ S REAMERS
payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows: FORBRBR DT -
At 31 December
R12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
ARETFT AREFT
Within 1 month 1MEAR 57,151 48,931
More than 1 month but within 3 months MEA EE3EAR 86,201 27,311
More than 3 months but within 6 months 31E A LA H1B6E AR 63,566 47,194
More than 6 months 618 A LA L 9,371 8,303
216,289 131,739
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Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Bank loan

As at 31 December 2015, the bank loan was fully secured by pledged
bank deposits (see note 17) and was mainly used for financing the
dividends paid to shareholders and was repayable within 12 months.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the bank loan carried an
interest rate of 1.58% per annum (year ended 31 December
2014: Nil).

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has two share option schemes namely, a Pre-IPO
Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), which were
adopted on 23 November 2011.

On 23 November 2011, the Company granted options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 20,500,000 shares of the Company to its directors,
senior management, employees and others under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, being 80% of the initial public offering price.

19

20

HOSA International Limited J& A BB AR A &

(BRRBEAI HAAREI|IR)

RITER

MR2015F12 8318 @ IRITEREUD
BIRITERE2SIER(RKIE17) &
FTEAEEERREINFOKE RER
121E H AEE - BiE=2015F12A31H
WWEFE - BITERFEFERE1.58% (F
20145128318 IHEE « #) -

URESEEURB/EENR
Z

ARATA2011E11 A23 B ERARIERE
RS BE A AR EIREEE
ARt B ([ &R AR SR ERAEST
&) R EER AT B ([ AR RERTEl ) -

M20114E11 A238 - AR GIRES
RARBENBRETEREES -
SREEAE EEREMALESE
AEERAHAEEENS0%REA L
20,500,000% A" mIf& {7 B BE AR A o
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20
(continveq)

122

The Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a period of 10
years ending on 23 November 2021. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, the directors of the Company may invite, at their discretion,
eligible participants, including employees and directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of
the Company to a maximum of 40,000,000 shares. The exercise price
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion but in any event will not
be less than the higher of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(a)

the closing price of the shares (the “Shares”) as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which
must be a business day, of the date of grant;

the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

BURE S 5 B IR 9 B E R ) 3
5(#)

R ZIMEREA106F - HEE2021
F11 7238 AL - RIFERERTE] - A
NAESAMNEZRFEEKRLHEE(H
BAEEBETEARARNEENRES)
¥ 40 0] £ % 7285 40,000,000 & R A AR
HEEIE - BIERT S TR ERETT
FEEHEES2ENBET ' HER
WMEITSER TIHREE

)y RHEHEREEZEB(AALEA)H
R RRERTHIERD ([
12 ) UTh(E

iy ZEREZANAESEABT
T & BREXRFTHIRAD FH U H
(=N

(i)  PEHEIE -

(a) BHENERRGEEDOT :

() EBXRHREFIBRRETE

Options granted on 23 November 2011 7201111 H23 B EH
s i
Number of
options Vesting Contractual
granted conditions life of options
ERERESE BEGYE BRESHED
Options granted to directors 6,460,000 WNote (}) Note (})
KT EFERE HtEEa) HtEEa)
Options granted to senior management 3,400,000 Note (}) Note (7)
B¥aREEE N IBRE BtaE0) et
Options granted to other employees 8,640,000 Note () Note (})
T EAME B e IERRiE BEEG) BEEG)
Options granted to others 2,000,000 Note (}) Note (7)
BT EA A T RERL 1 HEEG) HraE0)
20,500,000
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/|

(continued) 2 (&
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (@) BRHEBOERREHDOT @ ()
(continued))
(i)  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (i) BARABZREFERE S
(#)
Note (j): These options are exercisable during the period commencing Brata) - 2 E B ER N B B
from the day immediately following the expiry of the one {)11 F 12/)% 168 ([ E
year period after 16 December 2011 (the “Listing Date”), and mA )% —FHEE
ending on the day falling five years after the 23 November m2 B Ffﬁ?@:-ﬁ:zm 1 ¢1/1
2011 (the “Granted Date”), during which, (a) up to 30% A23R (&L A %@J)&
options granted may be exercised on or prior to the end of RFIEWHREATE
the second year after the Listing Date; (b) subject to (a), up to Ttk HE R @= %3\0%
60% options granted may be exercised on or prior to the end E(J B ﬁ %%*& AR E
of the third year after the Listing Date; and (c) subject to (a) m E/Hﬁ BE-FFRK
and (b), all outstanding options may be exercised prior to the ZATEE § (0)Z 2 60%
expiry of the said exercise period, failing which the options @E&/ﬁ%@%ﬂmﬁ
will lapse and no longer be exercisable. mAMRE=FFENL
ZATITE (AR (@R
R R(QFTA M ARITIE
) 8 AR 4 AT B R AR AT 4
HIE R AT T8 (AR (@) &%
) KRR ) - R EST
5 - 2L AR R
BABAATE -
(i)  Share Option Scheme (i) BRETE
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, no options had been 20156 2014512 A 31
granted under the Share Option Scheme. H - BHERIBE e &%
HE TR AR -
(b) The number and weighted average exercise price of share (b) BRENEBERMEFLGTEE
options are as follows: wmT
2015 2014
Exercise No. of Exercise No. of
price options price options

TEE BRERE IE(E WBAEEA

Outstanding at the REFEARITEE HK$1.28 15,468,000 HK$1.28 16,170,000
beginning of the year 1.2858 7T 1.28%8 7L

Exercised during the year FRNEITE HK$1.28  (4,053,000) HK$1.28 (702,000)
1.28/87T 1.288 7T

Outstanding at the end of the year WFRHARITHE HK$1.28 11,415,000 HK$1.28 15,468,000
1.28/87T 1.288 7T

Exercisable at the end of the year ~ RAGFRA] F17{F HK$1.28 11,415,000 HK$1.28 15,468,000
1.28/87T 1.288 7T
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20 Equity settled share-based transactions 20
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(continveq)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise price of share
options are as follows: (continuea)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an exercise
price of HK$1.28 (2014: HK$1.28) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.9 years (2014: 1.9 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value at measurement date

REEBENAREE

Share price

B in B

Exercise price

1TE(E

Expected volatility
TEERR IR

Expected option life

BB TERTF AR

Expected dividends
TEEAAR B

Risk-free interest rate
R b =

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.
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51.40%
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Income tax in the consolidated statement of

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

financial position

(a)

(b)

21 SHBMBIRRRFHRER

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) A BRRRPNVENEHRIER
financial position represents:
At 31 December
R12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RME 000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Prepaid PRC corporate income tax Tag P B ERTISH (8,232) -
PRC corporate income tax PRI FTISH - 15,161
PRC dividend withholding tax A B AR BB 19,000 -
10,768 15,161
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERIELHEEERAE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised P& DA RS IR % 7 a8 IR AT
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the MEEE/ (ARG BERBY REF
movements during the year are as follows: NI
Provision of
impairment  Provision for Undistributed
of trade impairment profit of PRC Unrealised
receivables  of inventories Accruals subsidiaries profits Total
6] LE HENEAT
AERE  FERERRE EiTER AR AEREH h
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RVB 000 VB 000 B 000
NEETT NEETT NEEFT  AEEFT ARETT NEETT
Deferred tax assets and liabilities ~ EEHEEEREEEL :
arising from:
At 1 January 2014 0141 818 92 - 3422 - - 3514
Charged to profit or loss RERNAR %) - - (7197) - (7,89)
At 31 December 2014 and 2014128318 R
1 January 2015 201551517 - - 3422 (7.197) - (3,775
Credited(charged) to profi WEERAF A/
orloss (k) - 132 (1) (22,585) 2123 (22,041)
Release upon distribution HIRRE RS
of dividends - - - 19,000 - 19,000
At 31 December 2015 Ra015E12318 - 3 171 (10782 2123 (6,816)
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Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21

EHMBRRRPHOFAER

financial position (continued) (&
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (conzinued) (b) ERREEHRELEERAR
(#%&)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statements of financial BAA GRS AR T 2R HBR ¢
position:
At 31 December
MW12H31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the RE HIIERR R IER K
consolidated statement of financial position FERIBEEFE 3,966 3,422
Net deferred tax liability recognised in the a5 IR A R HE SR Y
consolidated statement of financial position FEETEAEFEE (10,782) (7,197)
(6,816) (3,775)
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (0 RAREIZNELZHIEAR

As at 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of certain subsidiaries of the Group in
the mainland China amounted to RMB1,475,878,000 (2014:
RMB1,318,894,000). Deferred tax liabilities of RMB 136,806,000
(2014: RMB58,747,000) have not been recognised in respect of
the withholding tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries in the mainland China and the
Directors have determined that these profits are not likely to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends

(a)

Movements in the components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

(BR=EHEHI

BAANRESIR)

22 BEXR - #FERRE
(a) MHERBLWEE

REBHE OGRS RS Z B
VIR R S aR e B BR BN & o 1
HEPEK - ARFNFVIEEFR

the changes in the Company'’s individual components of equity M REZS AR Z 0 B & B 1555
between the beginning and the end of the year are set below: NN
The Company VNN |
Capitl Share-vased
Share Share redemption Bichange  compensation~ Accumulated
capital premium TESEIves Tesere Tesene losses Totd
moeZt) e 20 hoel20)  hoe i) e Z2600)
R REED
e RAEE  ATEEER ik iR 2ihE s
27 =27V 2/ 77 /A 27 )
Notes s B0 s B0 B0 B0 s
b4 NEETT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT \EEFT ABETT
Balance at 1 January 2014 HOMEI A1 RS 13,485 29,70 - (8,326) 6,676 (29548) 175,988
Changes in equity for 2014; WUEEERRS:
Total comprefiensive income fo the year EfrANEEE - - - 19% - (6,47) (4251)
Fquitysetled shere-based payments JEREENRARE 2 - - - - 1161 - 1161
Shae issued on exercie of share option EEREZCEORE 200 6 1,045 - - (38) - 709
Dividends approved in respect of curtent year AREEHENRE 20b) - (156,570) - - - - (15,570)
Purchase of own shares BERSRA 2l
- Parvlle paid -EffEE (26) - - - - - (2
- Premium paid -BhER - (534) - - - - (5.34)
~Transferbetween reserves -REREER - %) % - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 H0UENRAAREE 13,465 132,808 2% (6,330) 749 (35,7%) 111,669
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continueq)

Movements in the components of equity (conzinuead)

22 BXR - HERRE(E
BREARBIHBE(E)

Share-based

Exchange  compensation
reserve

(note 22(d)vi)
HEfREE
HARRE
(2t

i)

RMB000
ARETR

Total

i

RMB'000
ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2015

Changes in equity for 2015:

Total comprehensive income for the year
Share issued on exercise of share option
Dividends approved in respect of curtent year

Balance at 31 December 2015

0151 B 1Rk
WISEERRES
EpAkieg
fiiEERkE BRARA
IAERENRE
BERSH
-BRaEE
-CftE

- NlRRER

H201SE12A31AMER

1495

(1,986)

111,669

161,506
417
(198.455)

@
(895)

Share

capital
(note 22(c))

Jies

(o)

Notes RMB000
fE AREFT
13,465

(i) N
1) -

22(c)i)

G

13,49

5309

71,99
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continuea) 22 BX - RERRE(E)
(b) Dividends (b) RKRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () ZFEEENLLAERRR
Company attributable to the year: HRE -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RME 000
AREFT AR FT

Interim dividends declared of HK6.0 2 ZRE&6.05ILH)

cents per share (2014: HK5.3 cents  EAR%2.(20144F :

per share) B&5.370) 82,091 69,498
Final dividend proposed after the end A #R&EHIRE IR

of the reporting period of HK2.2 2. 27LM AR B B

cents per share (2014: HK6.9 cents (20144 : F}%6.9

per share) LD 30,576 91,369
Special dividend proposed after the ~ R¥REEAIRE KR EAL

end of the reporting period of HK2.0 2.0 LI &9 BIA% &

cents per share (2014: HK2.0 cents (20144 : &M%2.0

per share) B 27,796 26,484
140,463 187,351
The dividend proposed after the end of the reporting s IR B B M % B 4
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of REHRERAAE -
the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) JEZE L Az R RENE
Company attributable to the previous financial year, THBFERE (REZFE
approved and paid during the year: EHEREZ(T) :

2015 2014
RMB’'000 RMEB 000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Final dividend in respect of the BV REED
previous financial year, approved REIRR B (R FE

and paid during the year, of HK6.9  JE#t/EREN) - B

cents per share (2014: HK6.6 cents  6.97&1I1(2014%F :

per share) FH6.65751L) 90,215 87,072
Special dividend in respect of the BTV HREENE

previous financial year, approved RUARE (R FE &R

and paid during the year, of HK2.0  JEREf) - F#K2.0

cents per share (2014: Nil) BE(2014%F : ) 26,149 -

116,364 87,072
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22 BX - HERREE

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continueq)

(c) Share capital () B’=x
(i)  Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZITRAE
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
BRAEE ZEREE
Note 000 HKS 000 /?Mb’ 000
it FAE FET AREFT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK $0.01 each HREXE(E0.01E T
3 iilis 10,000,000 100,000 87,450
Ordinary shares, issued and ERITRBEZ
fully paid: ZEE
At 1 January 2014 M2014F1H1H 1,657,730 16,577 13,485
Shares issued under share option IR AEETEI T 2
scheme BT (i) 702 7 6
Purchase of own shares BEARFREG (iif) (3,220) (32) (26)
At 31 December 2014 and 72014912 831H
1 January 2015 20151416 1,655,212 16,552 13,465
Shares issued under share option BEAEEI T 2
scheme B EI T (i) 4,053 41 32
Purchase of own shares [EERNC T (iii) (384) (4) (3)
At 31 December 2015 7 201512 A31H 1,658,881 16,589 13,494

(ii)

130

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meeting of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company'’s residual assets.

Shares issued under share option scheme (ii)

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe
for 4,053,000 (2014: 702,000) ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of RMB4,127,000 (2014:
RMB709,000) of which RMB32,000 (2014: RMB6,000)
was credited to share capital and the balance of
RMB4,095,000 (2014: RMB703,000) was credited to
the share premium account. RMB1,986,000 (2014:
RMB342,000) has been transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium account.
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continueq)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R Y EE

(c) Share capital (conzinveq)

(iii)  Purchase of own shares

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)
22 EX - FERRE(E)
(0 BER#E)
(i) EEZXZRG

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares FA - ARE R AT
on The Stock Exchange as follows: HARSERMIOT :
Number of Highest Lowest

shares price paid price paid  Aggregate

Month/year repurchased per share per share price paid

B 28R 28R 24

B/ 5E ROEE BaER BIEE® wEE

HKS HKS HKS000

BT BT FET

September 2015 201599A 384,000 2.85 2.84 1,093

March 2014 2014F3R 2,364,000 213 1.94 4,892

April 2014 2014F4R 856,000 2.20 2.19 1,883

3,220,000 6,775
The repurchase was paid wholly out of share premium BEHEHEEQAES
in accordance with section 37(4) of the Companies Law 37(4) & - LR B DA R AR
of the Cayman Islands, an amount equivalent to the par ERE I - BERWE
value of the shares cancelled of HK$3,840 (equivalent to $EAR 1D B AY & ®E 3,840/8
RMB3,000) (2014: HK$32,200, equivalent to RMB26,000) 7T (FEE R A RME3,0007T)
was transferred from share premium to the capital (20144F : 32,2007 7T + 48
redemption reserve. ENARM26,0007L)E B
{817 i (B 2 1 & & N (B

1 o

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

(d) REEEREHN
() ROGEEREFBEGE

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the RERSESQEE AR
share premium account of the Company may be applied AR & (B BR P R
for payment of distributions or dividends to shareholders RSB TARR - HEERERE
provided that immediately following the date on which FIRT IR E BEZ
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the & RAmRERN B EEBB
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the EhEERER -

ordinary course of business.

Capital redemption reserve represented the nominal eeNHEN S AR

amount of the shares repurchased

EE
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continueq)

132

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (conzinuea)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
represented exchange differences and the excess of value
of assets injected to Haosha Industry by the investors over
nominal value of share capital, which was accounted for
in equity under capital reserve.

Statutory reserve

According to the Articles of Association of Haosha
Industry and Haosha Industry (Datian), the entities are
required to transfer part of its net profits (after offsetting
prior year losses), as approved by the board of directors,
to statutory general reserve. Haosha Industry and Haosha
Industry (Datian) are required to appropriate general
reserve at 10% of its profit after taxation, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
As at 31 December 2015, appropriations were made by
Haosha Industry (Datian) to the general reserve at 10% of
its profit after taxation. However, such reserve made by
Haosha Industry reached the aforementioned percentage,
thus no further appropriation is required.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside the mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 1(s).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = BRI HUARETR)

22 Capital, reserves and dividends (conznued) 22 EX - FERRE(E
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) d) FFEMERBENGE)
(v) Other reserve (v) ZEftFEE
The other reserve comprises the following: HiFEBERETSE
- the difference of RMB91,124,000 represents 75% - = B A R ¥
of the historical carrying value of paid-in capital 91,124,000 7T 5 BT 4
of Haosha Industry amounting RMB91,125,000 BEENDEEEWER
acquired over the nominal value of the shares JE S BREEHI75% 4%
issued by the Company amounting HK$ 1,000 (RMB AR #91,125,000 7T
equivalent of approximately RMB833); and A AR B BEITAI R
17 T {8 /4 1,000 7T
(ARBZEEHOAR
#8337 E D ¢+ I
- the difference of HK$9,999 (RMB equivalent — BN EBRERHEW
of approximately RMB8,000) between the ERXFESEAEEBES
historical carrying value of entire paid-in capital 10,0007 JT B 1%
of Hosa Group amounting to HK$10,000 and the BUWEMEE1E T
consideration of HK$1 acquired by Hosa Investment. B Z= 589,999 7T (A
E¥ESENARE
8,0007T) °
(vi) Share-based compensation reserve i) URGBEENFHERE
Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair ARG BEER B R ERE
value of share options granted to certain directors, senior KEFBETES  aHER
managements, employees and others of the Group. AB -~ BE REAMATER

BB A EE -

(e) Distributability of reserve (e) T IKFEE
The aggregate amount of distributable reserves (including ARARFAR20155F12 A31H ey A 4
share premium and retained earnings) of the Company as at 31 DR AR (B IR 5B MR
December 2015 was HK$80,783,000 (2014: HK$115,475,000). B A8 ) £80,783,0007% (2014

£ 1 115,475,000/87T) ©
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22 Capital, reserves and dividends (continueq)

(f)  Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

23 Employee retirement benefits

134

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the PRC
municipal government authorities whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes at the rates of 18% to 20%
of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government authorities
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of

pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the annual
contributions described above.
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24 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 90-180 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 6% (2014: 7%)
and 28% (2014: 30%) of the total trade and other receivables
were due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in note 15.
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W EE» Bl AE R AN EE &
AEFERAKXEFHFE -

AEBMAXNRSEERRE
RMBRERIBERER - A0
BIORKRAE EBEENREE

FERAKERE S K H MR R
MAHNEERRAE-—FPEE
WEEFIMMITES ©
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continveq)
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(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the chairman of
the Group when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group are
carried at amount not materially different from their contractual
undiscounted cash flow as all the financial liabilities are with
maturities within one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.

The contractual undiscounted cash flow and carrying amount of
the short-term bank loan as at 31 December 2015 are set out as
follows:

24

BBEBEERAABEE)

(b)

RMB’000
ARETFT

RBETER

AEEAMENKEEERER
RENBELER  BiERCAEHG
MEHIRERERERARNTE
HIMBRSHR - ERERBLE
TIEE R R - RIZARGA
SEEFRIAE - AEENBER
DERERRBESFERMER
ERFENETIER - AREREMS
FRAMFERIIS I ESREE
RURHNEARES - NEMNRE
HREHORBESTR -

RBER - ARFAEMBRE
BR—FAIHRIREREE -
AEBRAE T EHBRETIN
HEANCKRIERERELEE
RERIKSHFIFR

M2015%12A318 » BERTE
HEFTHARMIRA S REMEM
BEHEHIAT
2015 2014
RMB 000
ARBTFT

Contractual undiscounted cash flow

fRmE(E

Carrying amount

FRIRAARBRRERE

130,875 -

129,739 -
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continveq)

(0

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan
carried at variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The effective interest rate of the bank loan of
the Group as at 31 December 2015 was 1.58% (2014: Nil).

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group's profit
after tax for the year and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,083,000 (2014: Nil). Other components of equity would
not be affected by the changes in interest rates.

Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC,
the Group's transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
which is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, cash at bank
that were placed with banks in the PRC amounted to
RMB1,260,833,000and RMB1,471,713,000, respectively.
Remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

(BR=EHEHI

BAANRESIR)

24 HMBEREERAABEGE)

(9]

(d)

HOSA International Limited J& A BB AR A &

=k

AEBNFERRREEREF
A RFIENRITER - LLEE
REeAEEEERSRENER
% o JA20154F12 A318 » A&
ERTERNETHEAE1.58%
(20144 : &) o

HBETH

72015412 A31H - RExH b2
EBRFETE - WERNELEHA T
B1% - BIREEZF TR
AR B R D BIR D150
#) AR 1,083,000 (20144 -
T) o R EMEIBAAE TG R

BRER

HRAEBHN T ZEBEDEE
7 AEENRZFEIEUARE
HE - ARBTR BHAERAIN
% A RARBHINER S
VEBBTEARRITREMEK
REBIMNEMEBETT - IMNER
SR HE R TR B ARRITAT
HEER - ZEXRTRIZMHRE
ﬂ’_‘i o

R20145E % 20155128318 » 1=
WAFBRRITNRITERD B A
AR¥£1,260,833,0007T &k A R
1,471,713,0007T ° & & & MEHF
BB HN - WAZE 38 ST R BB e
B SINE Bl o

137



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(

(BR

Rk

BRI  MAARYSIR)

24 Financial risk management and fair values
(continveq)
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(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continuea)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
bank loan RMB129,739,000 (2014: Nil) denominated in United
States dollars held by the entity for which RMB is the functional
currency.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
appreciation/depreciation of 1% in RMB, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s
net profit for the year and retained profits by approximately
RMB1,083,000 (2014: Nil).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rate had been applied to re-measure the bank loan
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statement of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.

Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2014 and 2015.

2015 Annual Report £ E#R
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@E(‘EEM/\EMZ%WE‘E%?ME@E
BASEUETE @8BAA
R # 129,739,000 7T (2014 £ -
T)RIRITER °

HAEDHT

F20156 12 A31H + RERH b5
BERFBIE  WEAREREE
=T TE% - B AREBEZ

FERFFBAFERE R BEE RS
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UL BURE DT R R S AR
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ZKE.EEWM\EH E’]ﬁﬁ‘ﬂ'ﬁ
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25 Commitments

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

(BRRBEAI HAAREI|IR)

25 RiE
(a) MA2015F12A31 AL RAMIBEHR
RIEHBENARELSELRREN
T

At 31 December

M12A31H8
2015 2014
RMB’000 FMEB 000
AR¥FT AREF T
Contracted for EEES) 45,000 11,473

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

(b) H2015F12A318 > BEFTH
e HERINARRERAS
TREBEEMT -

At 31 December

R12A31H
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
ARMFIT AREFT
Within 1 year 1FER 7,428 7.278
After 1 year but within 5 years 1B B5F A 1,082 7,080
8,510 14,358

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2015, the
Group is the lessee in respect of items of offices in Hong Kong
and mainland China held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

HZE2014F 201512 A31H1E
FE AEERKEHETHME
NEBRFRAMPEAZIEB
A HE—RUFRE—=
RF - EEIEREATA G EA]
BIZEENE  HEMERSHK
g% -
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26 Material related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions.

During the year, the directors are of the view that the followings are
related parties of the Group:

Name of party
BEHEHE B#E

Relationship

26 EXBEBLRS

BB TR A5 AT B B OB
SN ERbASIEPN s
25 -

FA - EBEZRB/BATHASEH B
5o

Fujian Province Jinjiang City Haosha Garments
Co., Ltd* (“Haosha Garments”)

75% and 25% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and
Mr. Shi Hongyan respectively, who are the directors of

the Company

BEASIMEPREKBERAR(DEPRK])

BARRIE RN MBI ED RIS

75% K25%

Ho Born Investment Holdings Limited
("Ho Born Investment”)

TEHR B AR AR

49.85% and 26.23% owned by Mr. Shi Hongliu and
Mr. Shi Hongyan respectively
AR RIESI LR LA MEESRED RIS

49.85% }:26.23%

* The English translation of the company’s name is for reference only. The
official name of the company is in Chinese.

x* The Chinese translation of the company’s name is for reference only. The
official name of the company is in English.

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in note 8, is as follows:

* RALENRIBREMRSE - ZOA
MERBRERRX

o DRAIEENFXHEFERSE c RAF
EXRBEAH -

el

(a) FEEEAEHMH

AEBTEEEABNFTM(BE
M7 REE N TARREERN
KRR ESPABEN N &
TEREHFMESNFE)WT

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RME 000
AR#FT ARET T
Short-term employee benefits 5 R 8 & A 4,349 4,913
Equity settled share-based payments DEREE
LARZ 5 3% A< - 530
Contributions to defined contribution FLE HEFGR IR
retirement plans FTEMHERR 65 74
4,414 5,517

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)).
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26 Material related party transactions (continued) 26 EXBHRARS(EZ)
(b) Transactions with the related parties (b) EEEEAHREZ

(c)

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE
2015 2014
RMB'000 RME 000
ARHFT AEETFT
Purchases of products BEEMD
— Haosha Garments — DRI 3,040 2,512
Receiving processing services EMZE TN TR
— Haosha Garments — DRI 49,180 42,448
Loans from controlling shareholder REZERBRREHER
— Shi Hongliu — e 92,325 -
The loans from controlling shareholder are unsecured, interest TR AR R FTIR A B R R

free and have no fixed repayment terms.

Balances with the related parties

o B B E IR AR -

(0 EREAMETS AR

As the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following R EER - NEBEMEBEK B

balances with related parties:

NI ER

Year ended 31 December

BZENRANMBLEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMEB 000
AR¥FIT AREFT
Trade payables B S EMNK
— Haosha Garments — D BEIR (1,044) (4,843)
Dividend payable FERTRR S
— Ho Born Investment —ERRE (1,587) -
(2,631) (4,843)
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free [ENEEAFEAEIRE 28

and are expected to be paid within one year.

NIERE—FAN -
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27

28

142

Company-level statement of financial position 27 AREERBMRRK
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RME 000
k=3 AR¥FIT ARBTFT
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR E - -
Total non-current assets FRBEERE - -
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables E A FEIGR 177,730 33,350
Fixed deposits held at banks with R ERBA = 1A A MR E 4
maturity over three months T - 64,798
Cash and cash equivalents ReMHEEEEY 6,071 14,171
Total current assets REEELE 183,801 112,319
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables EAER R 105,852 650
Total current liabilities BB ERAE 105,852 650
Net current assets REBEERE 77,949 111,669
Net assets/Total assets less BEFE BEER
current liabilities REBEE 77,949 111,669
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital N 22(c) 13,494 13,465
Reserves & 22(d) 64,455 98,204
Total equity ERBE 77,949 111,669
Immediate and ultimate controlling party 28 EHEERERESH

At 31 December 2015, the Directors consider the immediate
controlling party of the Group to be Ho Born Investment Holdings
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity
does not produce financial statements available for public use. The
Directors consider the ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Mr Shi Hongliu.
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29 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 29 #HZE2015F12A831HLLFE

and interpretations issued but not yet effective B EREMNIEST - FET
for the year ended 31 December 2015 EAIRZEBN RS

Up to the date of issue of this report, the IASB has issued a few of BEEAWRET A B ERIE
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the B EMEEE Z=2015F 124318
year ended 31 December 2015 and which have not been adopted in LEFE MR ERENERT R AT 48 -
these financial statements. These include the following which may be Uh 55 B 7 S R I SRR AN G2 S BT I ET
relevant to the Group. AR o ZEER AT ERIBIE TS -

A REERANER EIARRA

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after
RUT B 2%
BN E T HEER
Annual improvement to IFRSs 2072-2074 cycle 1 January 2016
B R 7 A R20129F £2014F BR] < FRUE 201651 A1H
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, /nvestment entities.: Aoplying the 1 January 2016
consolidation exception
BURR B s s 2E RIS 1057 - BIFR B TSRS 2RI 31 25 I BIRR & st R RIS 285 (IERT AR - 201651 H1H
REGR  EFEHHE
Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of Interests 1 January 2016
n joint operations
BRI BRI E SR ERTR) - W A& &R m s &5h% 201651 H1H
Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
REFTERIE VR (BRI A) - FE/#%E 201651 H1H
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, (arrfication of accepiable
method of aepreciation and amortisation 1 January 2016
BIFR & at RIS 1655 RBIR G5t AIE385E (IBRTAN) - 778 R #E AT AJ#Z R T %8755 201651 H1H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BIEA R IR LRI 1558 - KA EL S48z 201851 A1H
IFRS 9, Ainancial instruments 1 January 2018
BB B S R RN 95 - 2T A 201851 A1H
IFRS 16, leases 1 January 2019
BIR B R R LRI F165% - HE 201951 A1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the REER R ZE BT RN EE
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial FREARIMF 2 - BRI - Ré&wmARMNZ
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is E&E] - FaI ERI TR B AR A8
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial HEMHBmRENERTLE -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

OB R R &
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RME 000 RME 000 FME 000 FME 000
ARKFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - = k& & 79,939 83,808 43,861 46,200 48,413
Construction in progress ERIRE - - 15,265 - -
Lease prepayments BRES 17,734 18,149 18,564 11,620 11,862
Intangible assets B EE 769 522 499 190 178
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEEE 3,966 3,422 3,514 6,869 7,857
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 102,408 105,901 81,703 64,879 68,310
Current assets REBEE
Inventories g 259,079 169,096 151,409 102,193 100,061
Trade and bills receivables B R e R 248,486 269,222 247,274 252,398 210,070
Deposits and prepayments & RIBR T 45,524 22,938 17,693 13,866 14,633
Other receivables Hib MR 50,024 28,812 3,991 5,938 1,954
Pledged deposits BEATH 174,916 15,832 17,684 98,278 13,171
Cash at bank and in hand*  $R{TTF R R F BB &+ 1,302,500 1,259,737 1,059,149 730,513 635,617
Total current assets A EEE 2,080,529 1,765,637 1,497,200 1,203,186 975,506
Total assets EEAR 2,182,937 1,871,538 1,578,903 1,268,065 1,043,816
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans RITER 129,739 - - 86,890 -
Trade payables B IENR 97,427 83,516 50,987 28,231 20,771
Bills payable ANES S 118,862 48,223 60,945 46,447 62,259
Receipts in advance L6 18,463 9,985 5,634 1,042 3,344
Other payables and accruals ~ EfbfE BT ER 86,134 66,310 56,571 41,305 63,403
Derivative financial liabilities ~ $T4 4 /& & - - - 933 -
Current taxation BNEAFR I8 10,768 15,161 8,710 11,120 16,808
Total current liabilities Ve JE=RETEE 461,393 223,195 182,847 215,968 166,585
Non-current liabilities kRBaE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE 10,782 7,197 - - -
Total liabilities BEAE 472,175 230,392 182,847 215,968 166,585
Shareholders’equity RS 1,710,762 1,641,146 1,396,056 1,052,097 877,231
Total liabilities and equity &R EXAE 2,182,937 1,871,538 1,578,903 1,268,065 1,043,816
* Included fixed deposits held at banks with maturity over three months. BIETF IR = 1A A ORI TE EITFAK ©

2015 Annual Report E£EH%



Five Years Financial Summary

AF B E

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

EOtEEREMEESRER
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB'000 RME 000 RME 000 RME 000 RME 000
ARKFT AREFr AREFor AREFor AREFor
Continuing operations: HEREER
Revenue = 1,178,001 1,216,546 1,021,520 848,063 695,168
Cost of sales FHER A (573,413) (576,273) (431,209) (333,874) (262,552)
Gross profit EFIEM 604,588 640,273 590,311 514,189 432,616
Other revenue WA
— Interest income — FBUA 36,633 43,560 11,735 6,057 1,074
— Rental Income - fAslA - - - - 103
— Government grants - BUS#EL 24,418 29,259 12,999 17,786 3,380
- Others - Hith 779 323 771 3,783 116
61,830 73,142 25,505 27,626 4,673
Other net (loss)/income Hin(E8), WA
HER
— Exchange (loss)/gain - [EX (B18) ke (519) (2,428) 5,457 695 268
- Others - Hith (7) (247) (2,682) (1,010) 72
(526) (2,675) 2775 (315) 340
Selling & distribution expenses  $8%5 Kz 4% $5 Ak A (206,770) (133,494) (104,537) (91,499) (65,331)
Administrative and other TR EMEERT
operating expenses (119,228) (88,281) (75,223) (70,414) (55,086)
Profit from operations R FI 339,894 488,965 438,831 379,587 317,212
Finance costs BTSN (1,002) - (398) (568) (1,544)
Profit before tax R F5 A AR 338,892 488,965 438,433 379,019 315,668
Income tax expenses FiSBim s (71,617) (85,803) (68,074) (47,907) (41,937)
Profit for the year EE R 267,275 403,162 370,359 331,112 273,731
Exchange differences on HE B A IE SN
translation of financial BB A = 89 B 75
statements of operations MERAEL ZR
outside the mainland
China (2,433) 1,996 (7,513) (175) (638)
264,842 405,158 362,846 330,937 273,093
Earning per share FIRAEF
— basic and diluted (#4178 - B RS
(AE#T) 0.16 0.24 0.23 0.21 0.22

HOSA International Limited &2 BB AR 7
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LFHBEHME

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EHRERER

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB 000 RME 000 RMEB 000 RMEB 000
ARBFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT  AREFT
Operating activities REER
Cash generated from BREMREHRS
operations 306,478 440,921 428,706 305,840 345,318
Income tax paid BRFER (72,969) (72,063) (67,129) (49,785) (36,000)
Net cash generated from K& EEFERESFE
operating activities 233,509 368,858 361,577 256,055 309,318
Investing activities REEH
Payment for purchase of EENE  BEK £HE
property, plant and (OF:
equipment (6,210) (31,170) (17,475) (3,572) (2,556)
Payment for purchase of BEEVEENR (622) (256) (421) (74) (135)
Intangible assets
Net cash inflow from disposal & H &M B A RIFTEFR
of subsidiaries ERA - - - - 13,080
Proceeds from disposal HEME - BE L&
of property, plant and FT1S50IR
equipment - 14 - 68 109
Interest received B IEFIE 40,095 22,519 15,045 2,741 1,074
(Increase)/decrease in BEREFEZRGEM),/ R
pledged deposits (159,084) 1,852 80,594 (85,106) 24,749
Placement of time deposits ~ FARE|HABBB=1EA
with original maturity over 2 F#i7ER
three months (1,281,500) (1,222,298) (723,950) (327,977) -
Maturity of time deposits [REEIRBB=EAZE
with original maturity over  HAfF X FIER%E
three months 1,222,298 723,950 327,977 81,070 -
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AF B E

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ([Conunuveaq)
EHEERERE)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB'000 RMEB 000 RMEB 000 RMEB 000 RMEB 000
ARMTFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Net cash (used in)/ REEH(FTA)/
generated from 8RS 38
investing activities (185,023) (505,389) (318,230) (332,850) 36,321
Financing activities BETE
Proceeds from bank loans  $RTE RS IE 129,606 - - 86,323 -
Repayment of bank loans ~ EEHFITER - - (88,644) - (98,800)
Proceeds from shares issued 1R {5 RE AR 5+ 2|31 TA% 1D
under share option FT8500A
scheme 4,127 709 3,329 - -
Proceeds from issue of shares B AR EEITIRINE
in the public offering, net FrS o (B 2776
of issuing expenses %) - - - - 488,575
Net proceeds from placing BEERMTERIEFE
shares - - 116,872 - -
Payment for repurchase of  f&{7 8B 2k
shares (898) (5,368) - - -
Interest paid BRFIE (892) - (569) - (1,544)
Dividends paid to equity BERARARERRRER
shareholders of the s,
Company (196,868) (156,570) (141,672) (161,539) (151,705)
Net cash (used in)/ BEEH(FrA),
generated from F8REFHE
financing activities (64,925) (161,229) (110,684) (75,216) 206,151
Net (decrease)/increase ReRBEZSEWOR
in cash and cash D)/ EINFE
equivalents (16,439) (297,760) (67,337) (152,011) 551,790
Cash and cash equivalents R1A1BHNHEERRE
at 1 January Z@y 37,439 335,199 402,536 554,547 83,827
Cash and cash equivalents A12A31BHBRE&R
at 31 December BHEZEY 21,000 37,439 335,199 402,536 635,617

HOSA International Limited &2 BB AR 7
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LFHBEHME

Major Financial Ratios

FEHKLEER
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
A. Profitability ratios: A BRgEHEE
1. Growth/(decline) 1. 85/ (TR’)
a. Revenue a. ZEwm (3.17%) 19.09% 20.45% 21.99% 99.88%
b. Net profit b. SEFIE (33.71%) 8.86% 11.85% 20.96% 135.76%
c. Total comprehensive C BREWEEE
income (34.63%) 11.66% 9.64% 21.18% 135.21%
2. Profit margins 2. FE=
a. Gross profit margin a. BF= 51.32% 52.63% 57.79% 60.63% 62.23%
b. Operating profit b. 4 &FHE
margin 28.85% 40.19% 42.96% 44.76% 45.63%
c. Total comprehensive C FEWEEE
income 22.48% 33.30% 35.52% 39.02% 39.28%
d. Net profit margin d. FFE= 22.69% 33.14% 36.26% 39.04% 39.38%
3. Return on equity/total 3. BEER
assets ETR
a. Return on equity a. EmEIHRE 15.80% 26.68% 29.64% 3431% 46.50%
b. Return on total assets b. BEERRE 13.06% 23.48% 25.49% 28.63% 34.63%
B. Liquidity ratios: B. RBIESLE:
1. Liquidity ratios 1. RBE e XK
a. Current ratios a. e E 4.51 7.91 8.19 5.57 5.86
b. Quick ratios b. EELL X 3.95 7.15 7.36 5.10 5.26
2. Turnover ratios 2. B &
a. Stock turnover days a. FEABAY 136.28 101.50 107.33 110.55 105.26
b. Debtors’ turnover b. FEUBRFEE
days HEr 80.21 77.57 89.38 99.71 103.53
c. Creditors’ turnover c EFEREFEAS
days HEr 110.77 77.17 78.98 86.21 119.88
C. Capital Adequacy C EFFZRIEE:
ratios:
1. Gearing ratio 1. BEHLE
a. Gearing ratio a. BELX
— bank loans - RITER 5.94% - - 6.85% -
b. Gearing ratio b. BELLE
— bank loans & bills - RITERK
payable ENZER 11.39% 2.58% 3.86% 10.51% 5.96%
2. Debt to net worth 2. EFFEL R
ratio
a. Debt to equity ratio a. BERELE 14.53% 2.94% 437% 12.67% 7.10%
b. Interest coverage b. FEEMNE 339.22 N/A TN@E A 1,100.78 668.29 205.45
3. Effective tax rate 3. BRTE 21.13% 17.55% 15.53% 12.64% 13.29%
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